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Five Years Financial Summary

AFMBHRE

Six months
ended 31
December Year ended
S 30 June
Year ended 31 December +=A=+-H BZAA
BZ+-A=1-HLEE EABR ZTHLEFE
Results E4 2012 2011 2010 2009 2009
—B-CF —T——F —T-TF —ZTNEF —ZTNEF
Turnover EER
(RMB'000) (AR®&FT) 979,424 214,480 328,080 140,120 287,780
Profit (loss) attributable AREZHEBA
to owners of the bR F (1)
Company (RMB'000) (ARETFT) 103,489 22,529 (30,853) (63,167) (18,547)
Earnings (loss) per share BROEH (B5E)
(RMB cents) (AREAD
- Basic -BEK 11.99 2.64 (3.62) (10.30) (4.33)
- Diluted 3 8.23 1.69 (3.62) (10.30) (4.33)
At 31 December At 30 June
W+=BA=+-H WAB=t+H
Assets and liabilities BEREE 2012 2011 2010 2009 2009
—2--f _T—F —T-TF —ZTNEF “ETNF
Total assets EEBE
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) 1,505,156 1,737,392 1,491,124 1,416,902 247,020
Total liabilities afEmE
(RMB'000) (ARETT) (1,076,109) (1,406,521) (1,004,659) (764,881) (235,294)
Net asset value BEFS
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) 429,047 330,871 486,465 652,021 11,726
Equity attributable to owners ¥R AFZ A A
of the parent (RMB'000) FEfhiEL
(AR®FT) 366,135 255,366 331,732 352,447 11,726
Non-controlling interests LSkl £
(RMB'000) (ARETIT) 62,912 75,505 154,733 299,574 -
Total equity 1A% 429,047 330,871 486,465 652,021 11,726
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the major business segments of the Group
during the year is as follows:

Property Development

The Group currently holds a property development project
in Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Project”). The
Project was developed in two phases. The properties of
Phase 2 of the Project have begun delivery in the second
half of the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, total turnover
attributable to the property development business
amounted to approximately RMB904,409,000 (2011:
RMB63,838,000) which were mainly contributed by the
recognition of relevant sales of Phase 2 of the Project.
During the year, over 50% residential properties and 14%
commercial properties of Phase 2 of the Project were
recognised as sales. Of the remaining properties of Phase 2
of the Project, approximately 57% of residential properties
and 8% of commercial properties was contracted for pre-
sales and will be delivered to the customers in year 2013.

Property Investment

Property investment business represents rental income
and capital appreciation from investment properties held
in the PRC. During the year, rental income amounted to
approximately RMB7,723,000 (2011: RMB7,057,000).
Net gain on change in fair value of investment properties
amounted to approximately RMB20,100,000 (2011:
RMB12,999,000).

At 31 December 2012, the investment property represents
the research and development centre in Shenzhen, the
PRC with gross floor area of approximately 15,084 square
metres.

£ 0]
AEEMEFNZEBEBHHERBMAT :

MRER

AEBBRIFAE —BURNTREERE 2WFEHE
RIEE ([ZHEB]) - ZBEE D MG - %A
BRE-_MMECRAFE THFRBRM -

BE-_ZTZ——F+-_A=+—BHLtEE Y%
BRE L BEFERTEN ARE904,409,0007T
(ZZT——%F: AR¥63,838,0000) BT &
EHAMRZIEE S B ABANERK - &
A ZIBEE _HBS0%TEME RI14%PG%E
MERERBHEERA - EZEBF_HHT
YER - B57%EEMHENENEEDNEEFT L
HETER -—"E—=EXMFEF -

MERE

MEREEKIRARFE 2 REWELHSE
WAREBERIEE - FR - HEWAZEHARKE
7,723,000c (Z & ——4F : AR ®7,057,000
TL) c WEMEZ AR BEEH 2 FREZ RN
A R #20,100,000c (ZF ——F: AR¥
12,999,0007T) °

W-F——#+-A=+—0 BAWLEL
R BRI 8RO (RIBFE 15,084
FHK) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR D

Trading

The Group’s trading business represents distribution of
electronic components and mobile phone modules. The
total turnover from the trading business during the year
amounted to RMB67,292,000 (2011: RMB143,585,000).
The decrease in turnover is mainly due to the weak
non-smartphone market. The Group has taken various
measures to diversify its product range with an objective
to increase its market shares and further enhance the
profit margin, including trading and licensed distribution
in smartphone business. These measures improved the
performance of the trading business in the second half of
the year 2012.

Technology

The automation and mobile handset projects involve
substantial capital investments and resources while market
environment in the short-term to medium-term still remain
uncertain and the competition is very keen. The Group will
consider investment in these projects only if the business
risks can be certainly managed and controlled.

MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2012, Phase 2 of the Project started to deliver to the
customers which resulted in the upsurge of the turnover
and profit of the Group. While the Board is optimistic
about the long term property market in the PRC, it is
expected that increased complication and tightening
property market measure imposed by the PRC government
would result in additional investment risk on the
developers.

In 2013, a new round of economic development
opportunities will be started. The deepening of
urbanization and different demand in each city will provide
the growth opportunities in the real estate business. The
Board will actively seek further investment opportunities
in the PRC to provide sustainable growth of the Company
while closely monitor future market trends and respond
to market changes in a prudent and pro-active manner to
mitigate the investments risk in particular those caused by
the increasing measures towards property markets of the
PRC Government.

85

AEBESEKNBEEFLHRFHRAN
oM FAN BHEBIBEEREARA
K #67,292,000 (=& — —F: AR K
143,585,0007T) * E@XBER L ETERHNIES
REFHMBES  AEBEERIZEREE - 1
EmAEeZmt BEMmSHERE—F
ReFBEX  BRESEFRERNE S LT
D MRIE——FTHF ZERHERSZT
BEHEBHRIR o

B

BEEMNFHRBBESRAEEAREMER
BREAZFH TR TARLBEFEIR - K
SEEEAZ2EEMEFRREREIEE
BIREZFEA -

mEAEREE
RZE——F ZBEF_HAGRINTE

F - EB8HARKRELRELGMAE - BEES
SHFBERMMEDTSRRNES > AHEGE
M2 AR R HBEBTE Y ET SR ERER
SHERBELRIMYERR

RZE—=ZF - GREZREREKSE
B oo WL ZRA RSB T 2 TRFT KK S
FHERGRHEREE BEFSRBESR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
achieved a turnover of approximately RMB979,424,000
(2011: RMB214,480,000) which represented an increase
of approximately 357%. The profit attributable to owners
of the Company was increased by 359% to approximately
RMB103,489,000 (2011: RMB22,529,000). The upsurges
in the turnover and profit are mainly attributable to the
recognition of sales from the Phase 2 of the Project.
During the year, over 50% (based on the gross floor area)
of the residential properties were delivered and recognised
as sales. The remaining properties that were contracted for
pre-sale will continue to be delivered and recognised as
turnover in 2013.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In 2012, the Group’s operating activities generated a net
cash inflow of approximately RMB255,733,000 (2011:
RMB354,901,000) which was mainly comprised of receipts
from the sales of Phase 2 of the Project. At 31 December
2012, the total amount of bank balance and cash was
approximately RMB196,668,000 (2011: RMB228,991,000,
including restricted bank deposits of RMB92,298,000).

At 31 December 2012, the total assets of the Group
was approximately RMB1,505,156,000 (2011:
RMB1,737,392,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 13%. The decrease was mainly due to
the sales of properties of the Project Phase 2. At 31
December 2012, the Group’s total borrowings decreased
to approximately RMB13,198,000 (2011: RMB99,357,000)
as a result of repayment of construction loan during the
year.

At 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio, expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings over net assets was 3%
(2011: 30%). The current ratio was 1.3 (2011: 1.3).

g JEI) -

BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—RHLEFEE #KX&
Bz EEmHARKEIT79,424,0007T (T ——
F: ANR¥214,480,0007T) @ 12 11 4I357% °
KARZHAB ANEAE & FIE II359%F 49 A
K #103,489,000c (Z &2 — —F: AR ¥
22,529,0007T) - ¥ BRHEMNBEEEZRRN
MRZBEE_HZHEHEWARK - TR @
50% (HBEFEERT) EEYWEE BRI ML E
REBHEWRA - B Ti’ﬁEﬁZﬂﬁ%%%HﬂA—
T —FHEBEXMNUERAEERE -

RBESRUBEIR
R-T——F AEEKLRBEENRSR

AFE(EEREHEEZEEFE _HHKA)
A% N R #255,733,000L (Z 2 ——F: A
R #354,901,000T) e R ——_F+ = H
—+—H AEBENRTEERRSBELEY
AR #196,668,000C (T ——F: AR
228,991,0007T * BIEERFIRITFARARE
92,298,0007T) °

RZE——F+-_A=+—8 AEAHNHLELK
EE AN A R®1,505156,0000 (Z T ——
F: AR®1,737,392,0007T) * A 4913% o
MO EERNRNEEZEERE _BMERM -
E:;f—¢+ A=+—H BRFARE
BREETREER AEENBEEERLZEY
A R #13,198,000c (ZZE ——F: AR®
99,357,0007T) °

:95 “F+ZA=+—H ' XEEMNEE
(ABEEBERUNEEFETE )7%3%(_
__i 30%) e MBI EA13(ZE
11.3) 0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR D

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the finance
costs were approximately RMB11,475,000 (2011:
RMB24,525,000). The charge comprised mainly of imputed
interest expense on consideration payable in relating to
the acquisition of the 50% interests in Zhuhai Zhongzhu
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Zhongzhu") of
approximately RMB4,652,000 (2011: RMB18,491,000) and
interests expenses on convertible bonds of approximately
RMBS5,164,000 (2011: RMB5,318,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company at 31
December 2012 was approximately HK$94,145,000 (2011:
HK$85,198,000) divided into 941,453,683 shares (2011:
851,980,000 shares) of HK$0.10 each. At 31 December
2012, the issued convertible redeemable preference shares
was HK$27,500,000 (2011: HK$35,000,000) divided
into 275,000,000 shares (2011:350,000,000 shares) of
HK$0.10 each and the convertible redeemable preference
A shares was HK$10,000,000 (2011: HK$11,000,000)
divided into 100,000,000 shares (2011: 110,000,000
shares) of HK$0.10 each. During the year ended 31
December 2012, 75,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares and 10,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference A shares were converted into approximately
78,947,368 and 10,526,315 ordinary shares respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs
in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management will
monitor foreign exchange exposure closely and consider
the use of hedging instruments when the need arises.

Bt AN

BHE-T——F+-_A=+—BLEE #%
A4 AR #11,475,000C (ZZE——F : A
K#24,525,0007T) - EAF ZBERKEIKE
PIREERZEAER AR ([TREFIK]) 50%H#
mENREZHEFN BRI ARKS652,000
T (ZZ——%F : AR¥18,491,00070) KAl
BREHFZHNERZLH ARKS, 164,000t (= F
——&F : AR¥5,318,0007T) °

BARGER
RZE——F+-_A=+—0 " A ame %
ITE AR AL B 94,145,000 (=& —
— 4 @ & #85,198,0007T) * 4 941,453,683
f& (= & — — 4 : 851,980,000/% ) i &
Bo1omwmilrtre R E——_F+ - A=
+—H BETAIERATEBELRELRKRABE
27,500,0007T (=& —— 4 : & ¥35,000,000
JT) 9 A275,000,0000% (= & — — F:
350,000,000/%) &A% E®0. 10T R 1D N2 7] 82
#am] B OB L AN &8 %10,000,0000T (ZF —
— 4 : % ¥11,000,0007T) °© 9 A100,000,000
f% (Z & — — 4 : 110,000,0000%) & f% 78 #&
010D - HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—
B I E - A75,000,0000% 7] & 4 7] §E [0 (& %
f% % 10,000,0008% 7] & #2 7] f& B8 5L AR 2 7l
T R 5 4978,947,368M% £210,526,315% & i@
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR D

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB 175,800,000 (2011: RMB6,325,000)
and leasehold land and buildings of approximately
RMB28,987,000 (2011: RMB17,917,000) were pledged
to banks for securing convertible bonds, revolving
loans and general banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company. At 31 December 2011, the
Group's properties under development of approximately
RMB971,642,000 were pledged to a bank for securing
a banking facility of construction loan. At 31 December
2012, facilities amounts of approximately RMB13,198,000
(2011: RMB99,357,000) were utilised and approximately
RMB803,000 (2011: RMB&10,000) were unutilised and
available for the Group’s future financing.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements of this reports.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 December 2012.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2012, the Group employed 56 full time
employees (2011: 53) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the basis
of market trends, future plans and the performance of
individuals, which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from
provident fund scheme and state-managed social welfare
scheme, share options will also be awarded to employees
according to assessment of individuals’ performance.

AEERH

RZE——F+-_A=+—H ' x&EHA
B4 A R #175,800,0007T (= T — — 4 -
A R #6,325,0000) 2 EWMEN BEY
AR #28,987,000c (ZZE——F: AR
17,917,0007T) < & L+ i X & F K #§ T iR
T 1EAARARAIETHBRARIERATRRKRE
5 HEREFRE—MRBITEEBREZER-
N_E——F+-_A=+—8  xEBBE AR
#) AN R #971,642,0007T 2 FEE W E KA T —
MERTT (EAENMEZETIRERBEITEER
BZ2ER R-ZTE——-—F+=-_A=+—8"
# AN R %13,198,000L (ZFE ——F : AR
#99,357,0007T) MEMEREE A RO ARK
803,000t (—ZF ——4 : AR ¥810,0007T)
MRV ERE M A A - A BIERSBBREFA -

7R E R
DHERZFBHARABEFEAPBHRE
FfFE10

BARERE

RNZE——F+-A=+—H8 AEFEWLEF
MERMEARNEIESEIE -
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RZE——F+_A=+—"H XxEEEFH
N Bl A6 (ZZ——4F :53(7) 28E
B AEBNHFMERTVKBEMHBE - KK
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR D

LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

(@

On 12 December 2009, the Company received a
writ of summons from Global Tide Limited (“Global
Tide"). Global Tide brought civil action in the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region against the Company for compensation
and damages of approximately HK$8,834,000 (the
“Claim”) in relation to the disposal of its former
wholly-owned subsidiary, Magic Gain Investments
Limited. Details of the Claim are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December
20009.

On 31 January 2012, Global Tide filed an amended
statement of claim in the High Court. Pursuant
to which the claim was revised and reduced to
HK$7,967,000. The Company decided to defend
against the Claim and obtained legal advice in
respect of the merits of the Claim. The directors
of the Company expect that there will not be any
material adverse financial effect on the earnings,
net assets and liabilities of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Group provided guarantees amounted
to approximately RMB428,962,000 (2011:
RMB266,904,000) for the repayment of the
mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the
Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released
by banks upon the delivery of the properties to the
purchasers or completion of the relevant mortgage
properties registration.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair values of the financial guarantee contracts of
the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and
at the end of the reporting period on the basis of
short maturity periods and possibility of low default
rate. Accordingly, no value has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

FARIAKE

(a)

RZZEZAF+_A+=H A2QAK
BlaARKERDA([MBK]) MEFAM-
BAREBRFITHERSERAARD
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(@) On 31 January 2013, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, fE4E R EH 2 (HYI) AR F] received
a writ of summons from & [ g & ffi F 5
ft in relation to the full payment of a legal fee
of RMB18,000,000 for the professional services
rendered for the investigation of an investment in a
trust company.

The Company decided to defend against and
obtained legal advice in respect of the merits of
the claim. The directors of the Company expect
that there will not be any material adverse financial
effect on the earnings, net assets and liabilities of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend any payment of dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank the shareholders for their continuous
support to the Company and extend my appreciation to all
management and staff members for their contribution and
dedication throughout the year.

By Order of the Board
China Uptown Group Company Limited

Liu Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors

EE/ET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Feng, aged 43, appointed as Chairman and an
executive Director on 17 August 2012. Mr. Liu has over
twenty years’ experience in the general management
and sugars markets in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Mr. Liu is Vice Director of Sugar Association
of China* (P EHEZ1H ). Mr. Liu is a founder of an
enterprise engaged in the sugar and starch production
business in the PRC. Mr. Liu was award as a “Distinct
Entrepreneur” by China Economic Trading Promotion
Agency* (FEILEE Z2#E) in 2011 and as a “Distinct
Non-Government Entrepreneur of China” by China
Non-Government Enterprise Directors Association* (91 [
EEZMEZRBE) in 2009. He holds an Executive Master
Degree of Business Administration from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Liu has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Liu is entitled to
an annual remuneration of HK$1,950,000, which is
covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company based on Mr. Liu's and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Mr. Liu is
determined by reference to his duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, Mr. Liu does
not have any interests or deemed interests in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO").

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Chen Xian, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director and vice-chairman of the Company on 12 October
2007 and was redesignated as Chairman of the Company
on 30 November 2007. Mr. Chen was redesignated again
as vice-chairman of the Company on 17 August 2012. He
is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chen is one of the founders of a sizeable property
development company in Zhuhai, the PRC and has been
a member of the senior management of a subsidiary of
that company. Mr. Chen was mainly responsible for the
investment and development of real estate projects of
such companies. Before joining those companies, Mr.
Chen worked as a senior member of certain stated-owned
companies and the local authority. He has more than
15 years of extensive experience in the investment
and development of real estate projects. He holds a
Master Degree of Business Administration from the Asia
International Open University (Macau).

Mr. Chen has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. Mr. Chen is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$1,690,000, which is covered
by his service contract, with discretionary bonus payment
as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Chen’s and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Mr. Chen is
determined by reference to his duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chen does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chen did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, save as to the
8,000,000 options granted to him, Mr. Chen was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.
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Mr. Lau Sai Chung, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 September
2006 and was re-designated as executive Director on 30
November 2007. Mr. Lau was also appointed as chief
executive officer of the Company on 30 November 2007.
He is currently also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce
with major in Accounting from the University of Alberta,
Canada and has over 20 years' experience in the field
of banking and finance both in Hong Kong and North
America. Mr. Lau is also a Fellow member of the Institute
of Canadian Bankers and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

Mr. Lau has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. Mr. Lau is
entitled to an annual package of HK$1,534,000, which is
covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company based on Mr. Lau’s and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Mr. Lau is
determined by reference to his duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

As at the report date, Mr. Lau has personal interest in
148,000 Shares, representing 0.02% of the issued share
capital of the Company and he has also been granted
4,000,000 options.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, Mr. Lau was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares
or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.
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Ms. Xia Dan, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 21 August 2007 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 12 October 2007. Ms. Xia was re-
designated as a non-executive Director on 31 December
2008 and re-designated as executive Director on 27
October 2010. Before Ms. Xia was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 21 August 2007, she had been a
member of the senior management of a sizeable property
development company in Zhuhai, the PRC and was
responsible for its project investments analysis. Ms. Xia
also worked for various companies in the PRC and North
America and has over 18 years of extensive experience
in strategic planning and marketing in the fields of
construction, financial and foreign trading industries. Ms.
Xia graduated from Shenyang University with a Bachelor
of Science in Architecture and holds a Master Degree
of Business Administration from the New York Institute
of Technology. Ms. Xia is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. She is currently also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Xia has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to the
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Ms. Xia is entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$650,000, which is
covered by her service contract, with discretion bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company based on Ms. Xia‘'s and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Ms. Xia is
determined by reference to her duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

As at the report date, Ms. Xia is the beneficial owner of
Mega Edge International Limited which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company holding 79,500,000 ordinary
shares, representing 8.44% equity interest in the capital
of the Company. Ms. Xia is deemed to be interested in
79,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Mega
Edge International Limited under Part XV of the SFO. As at
the report date, Ms. Xia has also been granted 4,000,000
options.
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Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xia does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xia did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, Ms. Xia was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares
or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael, aged 41, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 29 November
2006. Mr. Poon is also the chairman and a member of the
audit committee and a member of nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Poon
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. He
holds a bachelor degree in administrative studies from York
University in Canada and a masters degree in practicing
accounting with Monash University in Australia. Mr. Poon
worked for an international accounting firm and was
responsible for providing business advisory and assurance
services for listed companies. He has over 15 years of
experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition.
Mr. Poon had acted as an executive director and the chief
financial officer of Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8212), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") since October 2010 and June
2010 respectively and resigned as the chief financial
officer and re-designated as a non-executive director on
12 July 2011. He resigned as non-executive director on 31
December 2011. Mr. Poon is also an independent non-
executive director of Sino Dragon New Energy Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 395), a company listed on main
board of Stock Exchange, since January 2010.
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Mr. Poon has not entered into any written service
agreement with the Company and is appointed for a term
of two years. However, he is subject to the retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. Mr. Poon is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Poon is not covered by any
service contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Poon is
determined by reference to performance of the Group and
of Mr. Poon with reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Poon does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Poon did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding
the date of this Report. As at the report date, save as to
the 500,000 options granted to him, Mr. Poon was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Chan Chun Fai, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2011. Mr.
Chan is also the chairman and member of nomination
committee and a member of audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has
over ten years’ consultation experience in the property
markets in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Mr. Chan is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of Paragon Commercial Development Group, which
is engaged in the business of property investments, and
an executive director of Ritzy Paragon Retail Consultancy
Company Limited, which is engaged in the business of
provision of property market consultancy services. He
worked as a property consultant director in DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung (Shenzhen) Company Limited, a leading global
real estate adviser, from year 2003 to 2008.
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Mr. Chan has not entered into any written service
agreement with the Company and is appointed for a term
of two years. However, he is subject to the retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. Mr. Chan is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Chan is not covered by any
service contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Chan
is determined by reference to performance of the Group
and of Mr. Chan with reference to prevailing market
conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not
hold any directorships in any other listed companies on
the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or
other major appointment during the three years preceding
the date of this Report. As at the report date, save as to
the 500,000 options granted to him, Mr. Chan was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield, aged 54, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2011.
Mr. Ng is also the chairman and member of remuneration
committee and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ng has over
twenty years’ experience in consumer and commercial
finance in the markets of Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr.
Ng is currently an executive director of China Netcom
Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8071), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange since
16 October 2007. He was an executive director of Sino
Prosper State Gold Resources Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 766), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
between 29 June 2009 to 24 September 2012 and an
independent non-executive director of Long Success
International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8017), a
company listed on the GEM, between 3 January 2006 to
6 October 2012.
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Mr. Ng has not entered into any written service agreement
with the Company and is appointed for a term of two
years. However, he is subject to the retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Mr. Ng is entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment. The
remuneration of Mr. Ng is not covered by any service
contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Ng is
determined by reference to performance of the Group and
of Mr. Ng with reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointment during the three years preceding
the date of this Report. As at the report date, save as
to the 500,000 options granted to him, Mr. Ng was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.
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SEERRE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and
the management of the Company are committed to the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions"”)
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Former CG Code”) which was subsequently revised
as the Corporate Governance Code (the “Revised CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and came into full effect on 1 April 2012.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has
complied with all of the Code Provisions of the Former
CG Code for the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March
2012 and of the Revised CG Code for the period from 1
April 2012 to 31 December 2012.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year under
review.
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COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing shareholders value. As at
31 December 2012, the Board consists of seven Directors,
comprising four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent
non-executive Director possess appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Feng (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 August 2012)
Mr. CHEN Xian (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. XIA Dan
Mr. Xiong Jianrui (resigned on 29 June 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

The directors’ biographical information are set out on
pages 12 to 19 of this Annual Report. All executive
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient
experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties
effectively and efficiently. There is no relationship among
the members of the Board of Directors.

The Board has delegated the executive Directors with
authority and responsibility by handling the management
functions and operations of the day-to-day business of
the Company, while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be taken
by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaration of
interim dividend and making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions
under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and
making recommendation for capital reorganization or
scheme arrangement of the Company.
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The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.
A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his duties as
a Director may convene, or request the secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to convene,
a meeting of the Board to approve the seeking of
independent legal or other professional advice.

The Company adopts the practice of holding meetings
of the Board regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Notice of meeting of the Board will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings. Directors may participate either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

During the year, four meetings of the Board were held,
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The attendance of Directors at the
Board Meetings and the Board Committees’ Meetings is
set out in the table below:
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gsi'ﬁ'ﬁ' E’Q‘f*@%L?‘%Fﬁﬁ%% /TfﬁuuHTiIE

SEEM —vAﬁﬁ%ﬁg%%§$o§$
CIF: %5 BAAAHEEE -

FRAERTHAE=ZE SR ESCESHEH
BRUMMELABRE EFSGNEFTZEER
REZEFZLFEBRAIIINTE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HEEE SERLE R
Annual General
Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Meeting held on
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee 15 June 2012
R-E--F
~NATRERER
BEps Ezg ENZEE ¥MzEe REZE%E RRAEAS
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. LIU Feng Eilf2 St
(appointed on 17 August (R=E——F/1f1+H
2012) BZH) N - - - 0/0
Mr. CHEN Xian BEEE 4/4 - - - 1"
Mr. LAU Sai Chung Iy e 414 - - - /1
Ms. XIA Dan XIA DanZ £ 4/4 - - - 171
Mr. XIONG Jianrui el oyita 0 - - _ 0/1
(resigned on 29 June 2012)  (R=E——#rH=+4HA
B#)
Independent By
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael ~ EEE %A 444 22 33 20 171
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai RIRELAE 44 b)) 33 m N
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield —~ REIf %4 44 0 33 M N
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive a comprehensive induction package
covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that
he is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
The Group also provides briefings and other training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills,
and update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments
in relation to regulatory update, the duties and
responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group in the following manner:
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Attended
Seminars or
Briefing/Read
Materials
Name of Directors SMAFTER
EEHA ENeE EEME
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LIU Feng gt (R-ZF——F
(appointed on 17 August 2012) NAT+HEZF) v
Mr. CHEN Xian PRE A& 4
Mr. LAU Sai Chung 2t B AE 4
Ms. XIA Dan XIA DanZ & v
Mr. XIONG Jianrui RRRBRSEE (R F——4F
(resigned on 29 June 2012) NAZFAHEHE) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael EEBLE v
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai BRI HE S v
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield REFLE v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

On 17 August 2012, Mr. Liu Feng was appointed as
executive Director and the Chairman of the Board and Mr.
Chen Xian was re-designated from the Chairman to the
Vice-chairman of the Board.

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and are currently held by Mr. Liu Feng and Mr.
Lau Sai Chung respectively. The Chairman is responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning and the management of the
operations of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer
takes the lead in the Group’s operations and business
development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company which provides a balance of power and
authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of two years and subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
("AGM") in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the "Articles”). One of the independent
non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the
annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision of the Former CG Code. On 29 March 2012, the
Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee, which has included changes
in line with the Revised CG Code requirements effective
from 1 April 2012. The revised terms of reference setting
out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The existing
Nomination Committee has the following three members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Chun Fai (Chairman)
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company.
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are reviewing and supervising the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to
the Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination
of Directors should take into consideration the candidate’s
qualification, ability and potential contribution to the
Company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director must also satisfy the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year, two meetings were held by the
Nomination Committee to consider the appointment of Mr.
Liu Feng as executive Director and Chairman of the Board,
the re-designation of Mr. Chen Xian as Vice-chairman
of the Board and the resignation of Mr. Xiong Jianrui as
executive Director, to recommend the re-appointment of
the Directors standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company, to review its own size, structure
as well as composition, and to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The aforesaid newly
appointed Director was appointed by going through the
selection process stated as above.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with
the written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision of the Former CG Code. On 29 March 2012, the
Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which has included changes
in line with the Revised CG Code requirements effective
from 1 April 2012. The revised terms of reference setting
out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the operation model where it
performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The existing Remuneration Committee has
the following three members:
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (Chairman)
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time.

Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. During
the year, three meetings for Remuneration Committee
were held for, inter alia, reviewing the remuneration policy
and structure for as well as the remuneration packages of
all Directors and the Senior Management and to review
the remuneration package of Mr. Liu Feng as a newly
appointed executive Director during the year. No Director
was involved in deciding his own remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions
of the Former CG Code. On 29 March 2012, the Board
adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, which has included changes in line
with the Revised CG Code requirements effective from 1
April 2012. The revised terms of reference setting out the
Audit Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The existing Audit Committee has the
following three members:
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group;
and supervising the financial reporting process and
effectiveness of internal control system of the Group.

During the year, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee to review and make recommendation to the
Board for approval of the audited results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2012,
to discuss the accounting policies and practices which
may affect the Group with the management and the
Company’s auditors, to make recommendation on the re-
appointment of external auditors for the approval of the
shareholders in the AGM, to review the fees charged by
the external auditors; and to review the internal control
system of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions. The terms of
reference of corporate governance functions was adopted
by the Board at the Board meeting held on 29 March 2012
and is in compliance with paragraph D3.1 of the Revised
CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Board has reviewed the policy of the corporate governance
of the Company.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 were performed by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit
and non-audit services provide by external auditors is set
out in the following table:

BT =

AEEHE-_T——F+_A=1+—HItFE
B IVEREKTBN (FE) € ESTA
[RAFIRIE o

SIS AL BRED PR 2 R TE R B N IR R BUR TS 2
B/ ERZEBEHEHINN TR

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered Frig AR % e EAEAR
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
BE-ZE——F Fz—_ZT——F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
IEFE IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited SRR (BH) GETAIE5
FiER A A
— Audit services — ZERTE 1,100 1,000
— Non-audit services — IEZERTE
Interim review i BR324 530 500
Other services H At AR 112 -
Total fee paid/payable for the year FREN BN ZEREH 1,742 1,500

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Fu Lui, was appointed on
2 July 2010. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and has regarded to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordnance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, Mr. Fu
undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training
to update his skills and knowledge.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements at the end of
the reporting period which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement by the auditors of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 47 of
this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to achieve the Company’s business strategies
and the Group’s business operations. The Directors have
adopted an internal control policy for the Group. The
internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and to assists
the Company in achieving its business objectives. The
policy has been developed with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management.
The Company’s internal control system comprises a well
established organizational structure and policies and
standards. Procedures have been designed to safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, to ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication, and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The purpose of the Company's
internal control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks or failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Company’s objective.
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During the year, the Directors have conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing
and transparent communication with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation. A
Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the
shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely
access to balanced and understandable information of the
Company. The Company also uses various other means of
communication with its shareholders, such as publication
of annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars
and additional information on the Group’s business
activities and development on the Company’s website:
www.chinauptown.com.hk.

During the year, the AGM held on 15 June 2012, except
Mr. Xiong Jianrui who has resigned as Director on 29 June
2012, the whole Board of Directors and auditor of the
Company have attended the meeting to answer questions
of the Shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’'s head office and principal place of business at
Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any
shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the issued
share capital of the Company and the securities being held
carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition
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to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business at Suite 1501,
15/F.,, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and
the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business
and its supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F., Tower
1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/
she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or send
email to info@chinauptown.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are engaged in (i) property development;
(i) property investment; (iii) trading of electronic related
components, mobile phone modules and automation
products; and (iv) technology automation and handsets
project. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments
and geographical segments for the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in this annual report on pages 48 to 163. The
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and minority interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PREPAID
LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group during the year are set out in
Notes 18 to 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary share
capital and share options are set out in Notes 36 and 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE
SHARES

Details of the convertible redeemable preference shares
issued by the Company during the year are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares of the Company on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 51 and 52 of this annual
report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not
have any reserves available for cash/in specie dividend
distribution to shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during the year is as
follows:

BIRE 035 i

REEH  ARBHBERES EYABERS
DIRTARBIRRZ #E -

IREFREER

FR AEEXEHEFELARERFBN
o

Percentage of the Group's total

EEAEERAERSL

Purchases

The largest supplier =ANHEER 50%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHESEE 66%

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of Group’s total revenue for
the year.

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the major customers and suppliers disclosed above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the report date are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Feng (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 Auqust 2012)
Mr. CHEN Xian (Vice-Chairman)
(redesignated as Vice-Chairman on 17 August 2012)
Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. XIA Dan
Mr. XIONG Jianrui (resigned on 29 June 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield
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Mr. Chen Xian and Ms. Xia Dan shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
pursuant to article 87(1) of the Articles, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting.

In addition, Mr. Liu Feng shall retire from office as Directors
at the annual general meeting pursuant to articles 86(3) of
the Articles, and being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are
set out on pages 12 to 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed term. Each of
the executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus,
the amount of which will be determined by the Board of
Directors as its absolute discretion having regard to the
operation results of the Company.

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director of the Company had a significant beneficial
interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. POON Lai Yin,
Michael, Mr. CHAN Chun Fai, and Mr. NG Kwok Chu,
Winfield, an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company
and the highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are set out
in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party and connected party
transactions are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of

BRERLERREE

REEHREEZHBREAVEREW T
42T -

BEXS

BEBEBALTRGNBEER S ZHBRESTER
KM ETA5T)E -

BN BUR
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the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Part XV of the SFO) (1) which are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

HEZBITBRAERARFREREEZE (T

BEMEEIEGEXVES) B - HEKRGD
HEHFFHEBN $E<$I§m%&ﬁ;ﬁfﬂﬂ@xvﬁ|3%
TRSDEERNEARNG MR #wm AR
(@?ﬂﬁ?&”‘%&ﬁﬁiﬂw |EBEX R AKE

Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (2) which

BB 2R SAE)
Hﬁ i% &5 3521578 %

%0
37 B B GO MMl O B AR ROK

2)/RFE AMRIBRE 75 )

B EGRELTA Ti%Lﬁﬁ%ﬁ&% MR

are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be %E—;TE\J (Hﬂf ESTRI]) MBI T MR FT
entered in the register referred to therein; or (3) which ZREZNABWT
are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
Code"”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number of Shares held options held total issued
igsdivnt = s REHE ordinary Shares
Personal Corporate Personal HERT
Interest Interest Interest Total EBRBHEH
Name of Director BEfE AR DRESH fHARE By HNESH
Ms. XIA Dan (Note) XIA DanZ £ (Ff3F) - 79,500,000 4,000,000 83,500,000 8.87
Mr. Chen Xian RELE - - 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.85
Mr. LAU Sai Chung £yt 48,000 - 4,000,000 4,148,000 044
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael BEEEE - - 500,000 500,000 0.05
Mr. Chan Chun Fai EiRE R - - 500,000 500,000 0.05
Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield REEEE - - 500,000 500,000 0.05
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Note: Ms. Xia Dan (“Ms. Xia"”) is taken to be interested in
79,500,000 shares held by Mega Edge International Limited
which is 100% owned by Ms. Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Xia is deemed to have interest of the Shares held by Mega
Edge International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2012, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
nor their associates had any interest or short position in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations which were recorded in
the register required to be kept under 352 of the SFO or
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders

At 31 December 2012, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) has interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholder required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

(i) Long position in ordinary Shares

Bi3E © Xia DanZz£( [ XiaZzz 1) #48 A% 5 Mega Edge
International LimitedPT#5579,500,0004% % 17
Z100% s o RIBFESH RAAEEH - Xiaze 1
R AE%EAMega Edge International LimitedF7#
B&1D 2 #Eas o

BrENHIBEEZEEN RZE——F+_A=+
—H  ARREBEEREBITHABURTEER
HEATHERAQ T S ERBEENRGD
HERDKESTHEEBECABREESFNGE
B E352KR T AT E 2 B MR IFIZ%EST
BIZBREARR R RBZFRE AR sR e -

FERR

R-_TE——F+_A=1+—"H BFEEAT
AT (BRARBEERETETHRABIN RARQ
AR EERNFPHEEERIAE - MIRE
BHERERIIEXVEE2R3D EAMARF]
PFE - AR ARRBIRIBEES MHEEMIZE336
BZREBGFEZEERERELMA -

Approximate

percentage

of total

Capacity and Number of issued ordinary

Substantial Shareholders nature of interest Shares held Shares

e T

i SZERRAEE

FERR SO REREME G EE 2B
Mega Edge International Limited (note) Registered Shareholder

Mega Edge International Limited (Ffi5t) EER i 79,500,000 8.44
Mr. Ho Man Hung Registered Shareholder

Ho Man Hungst & AR ER 185,600,000 19.71

China Uptown Group Company Limited [ _Fii B AR A 7 Annual Report 2012 F3;

37



38

(i)

Report of Directors

EEEWE

Note: Mega Edge International Limited, which is 100%

W

owned by Ms. Xia Dan, an executive Director of the
Company. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia is deemed
to have interest of Shares held by Mega Edge

International Limited.

Long position in underlying shares

RATZHAITEEXia DanZ £ ¥ Mega
Edge International Limited#&100% &
IEHIE o RIBFEHKAAEEM - Xiak
TR A% EMega Edge International
Limited FT#5 AR (9 2 # %5

(i) RIEERDZLFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Capacity and underlying Shares total issued
Name nature of interest held  ordinary Shares
e
FisiEE EERROAGHZ
£ SO REREE BRHEE BAED
Preference shares:
ELRRL -
Best Contact Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
("Best Contact”) (Notes 1 and 2)
Best Contact Holdings Limited ERBAE
(IBest Contact ) (FifzE1K2) 268,421,054 2851
Mr. Xu Deliang (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation
Xu Deliang5c 4 (Fii7E2) R NI 268,421,054 28.51
Convertible bonds:
AR E -
Seaton Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner
REERAE (FHE3) ExEEE 314,917,505 33.45
Leading Front Limited (Note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation
Leading Front Limited (PfzE3) S NI 54 314,917,505 33.45
Mr. Ho Man Hung (Note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation
Ho Man Hung?t 4 (Fi73) Seud UNIPR $a 314,917,505 33.45
Zilver Yuan Investment Partners Ltd. Beneficial owner
("Zilver Yuan") (Note 4)
RTREBEBRAR ([R]) (ME4) EnlAE 271,186,440 28.81
Bank of China Group Investment Interest of a controlled corporation
Limited (“BOCGI") (Note 4)
FIREEREBRAR b NI 54
(THREERE ) (FiH4) 271,186,440 28.81
Bank of China Limited (“BOC") (Note 4) Interest of a controlled corporation
RERITIROBRAR ([RERIT]) (HF4) SEHIARzEH 271,186,440 28.81
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”) (Note 4) Interest of a controlled corporation
hRESKREEREMENF ([Ee)) (iiF4) SEHIDF 2 ER 271,186,440 28.81
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The Company entered into a subscription and
option agreement on 26 May 2006 with Weina and
through such agreement and the exercise of option
by the Company, Weina is interested in 350,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares of the
Company and has the right to convert the aforesaid
shares in 350,000,000 Shares (based on its initial
conversion price). On 2 June 2009, the Company and
Weina entered into a first supplemental agreement to
extend the conversion period for the aforesaid shares
for a further 12 months from the expiry date of the
conversion period under the subscription and option
agreement. By a second supplemental agreement
dated 23 October 2009, the conversion period
shall be extended automatically for a period of 12
months with effect from each expiry date of the said
conversion period unless (i) Weina serves a written
notice on the Company notifying its intention of not
extending the said conversion period for a further 12
months not later than 7 days prior to the expiry date
of the said conversion period, and (i) the Company
agrees not to extend the said conversion period for
a further 12 months upon receiving such notice.
It is also agreed that the convertible redeemable
preference shares shall become transferable. On 25
May 2010, Weina transferred 225,000,000 convertible
redeemable preference shares to Best Contact. On 31
August 2010, Weina further transferred 50,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares to certain
individuals. On 17 March 2011, Weina further
transferred 75,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares to Best Contact.

Moreover, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement on 17 November 2006
with Weina Holdings Limited and through such
agreement, Weina (as designated by Weina Holdings
Limited) is interested in 110,000,000 convertible
redeemable preference A shares of the Company
and has the right to convert the aforesaid preference
A shares into 110,000,000 Shares. Weina Group
Limited owns the entire issued share capital of Weina
and is therefore deemed to have interests in the
underlying Shares in which Weina is interested. By
a supplemental agreement dated 23 October 2009,
the conversion period for the aforesaid preference
A shares is extended for a further 12 months from
the expiry date of the conversion period; the said
conversion period shall be extended automatically for
a period of 12 months with effect from each expiry
date of the said conversion period unless (i) Weina
serves a written notice on the Company notifying
its intention of not extending the said conversion
period for a further 12 months not later than 7
days prior to the expiry date of the said conversion
period, and (ii) the Company agrees not to extend
the said conversion period for a further 12 months
upon receiving such notice. It is also agreed that
the convertible redeemable preference A shares
shall become transferable. On 25 May 2010, Weina

b
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transferred 5,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference A shares to Best Contact. On 31 August
2010, Weina further transferred 70,000,000
convertible redeemable preference A shares to
certain individuals. On 17 March 2011, Weina further
transferred 35,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference A shares to Best Contact.

In accordance with the terms and conditions of
the convertible redeemable preference shares and
the convertible redeemable preference A shares,
the conversion price of the convertible redeemable
preference shares and the convertible redeemable
preference A shares will be adjusted as a result of the
issue of the Convertible Bonds to HK$0.38.

Best Contact is legally and beneficially owned
by Mr. Xu Deliang. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief and having
made all reasonable enquiries, Mr. Xu Deliang
is an independent third party of the substantial
Shareholders and Directors.

On 14 November 2012, Best Contact has exercised
HK$30,000,000 principal amount of the Preference
Shares and HK$4,000,000 principal amount of the
Preference A Shares at the adjusted Conversion
Price of HK$0.38 and 78,947,368 and 10,526,315
Conversion Shares have been issued accordingly.

As at 31 December 2012, Best Contact also have
19,473,683 ordinary shares of the Company, which
represented 2.07% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

On 3 December 2010, the Company entered into
an acquisition agreement with Seaton Limited and
through such agreement and the exercise of the
conversion right of the convertible bonds, Seaton
Limited is interested in 283,425,754 shares of the
company (based on its initial conversion price). The
acquisition was completed and the convertible bonds
were issued on 1 March 2011. Reference is made to
the announcement of the Company dated 7 March
2012, the conversion price of the convertible bonds
was adjusted HK$0.73035 with effective from 1
March 2012. Based on the adjusted conversion price,
an aggregate number of 314,917,505 ordinary shares
of the Company can be converted.

Seaton Limited is 100% owned by Leading Front
Limited and Leading Front Limited is 100% owned
by Mr. Ho Man Hung. Accordingly, Mr. Ho Man
Hung and Leading Front Limited are deemed to be
interested in the relevant convertible bonds issued by
the Company to Seaton Limited.
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4., On 19 September 2010, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Zilver Yuan and
through such agreement and the exercise of the
conversion right of the convertible bonds, Zilver Yuan
is interested in 271,186,440 shares of the company
(based on its initial conversion price). The subscription
is completed and the convertible bonds are issued on
1 December 2010.

Zilver Yuan is 100% owned by BOCGI and BOCGI is
100% owned by BOC. Huijin owned 67.53% capital
of BOC. Accordingly, Huijin, BOC, BOCGI are deemed
to be interested in the relevant convertible bonds
issued by the Company to Zilver Yuan.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered interest
in the share capital of the Company that was required to
be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the
SFO and the Listing Rules.

Save for the shareholders as disclosed herein, the Directors
are not aware of any persons, who, at 31 December 2012,
were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5%
or more of the voting power at the general meeting of
the Company and were also, a practicable matter, able to
direct or influence the management of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 20 January
2003 and terminated on 30 November 2009, (the “Old
Scheme”). A new share option scheme was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 November 2009 (the
“New Scheme"”). The purpose of the New Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant share options to participants
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have made or
may make contribution to the Group or any invested entity
as well as to provide incentives and help to the Group in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.
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EEERE
Particulars of the movement of the options held by each of HE_T——F+A=1+—HLEFER B
the Directors, the employees of the Company in aggregate BEAELRFAERTAARIESREEZE
granted under the Old Scheme and New Scheme during IRIES B FFITETIAT
the year ended 31 December 2012, were as follows:
Number of share options
EREHR
Held at
Held at 31 December
Exerdse ~ 1January  Granted  Transfer Exercised  Lapsed 2012
price 212 during  during  during during M=B-ZF
Category of participants Date of grant Exercise period pershare W=5--% theyear theyear theyear theyear 12
kR  -A-B REM RER RER RER =1-A
E2:IN R¥RE  ORE ﬁ{?{ﬁ L] gF il i P <L)
HK
Share options granted under the Old Scheme
REFE TR ERE
Mr. Chen Xian
RExE 2182009 21.82009-208.2012 1.18 3,500,000 - - - (3,500,000) -
Mr. Lau Sai Chung
s 2182009 2182009-2082012 1.18 3,352,000 - - - (3,352,000) -
Mr. Xiong Jianrui (resigned on 29 June 2012) (Note)
Reslin e
(R=F-=F A= HNBED) () 2182009 21.82009-2082012 1.18 3,500,000 - (3,500,000) - - -
s, Xia Dan
Xa DanZ = 2182009 21.8.2009-208.2012 118 3,500,000 - - - (3,500,000) -
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael
EEEEE 2182009  21.82009-2082012 118 200,000 - - - {200,000) -
Employee
k8 2182009 21.8.2009-208.2012 118 3,200,000 - 3,500,000 - (6,700,000) -
Share options granted under the New Scheme
WA R 2 Bl
Mr. Chen Xian
RELE 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 - 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
Mr. Lau Sai Chung
It 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 - 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
Mr. Xiong Jianrui (resigned on 29 June 2012) (Note)
R
(W=F-—FRA-TABE) (1) 1812012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015 052 - 4,000,000 (4,000,000 - -
Ms. Xia Dan
Xa DanZ = 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 - 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael
ERELE 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 - 500,000 - - - 500,000
Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield
REMGE 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 - 500,000 - - - 500,000
Mr. Chan Chun Fai
R E 1812012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015 052 - 500,000 - - - 500000
Employee
[ES 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015 0.5 - 8,500,000 4,000,000 - - 12,500,000
Other eligible participants
EfyaEReEE 1922010 1922010-822013 0.8 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Total
At 27,252,000 30,000,000 - - (17,252,000) 40,000,000
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Note: Mr. Xiong lJianrui has resigned as executive Director on 29
June 2012, but Mr. Xiong Jianrui remains as an employee of
the Company.

During the year under review, 30,000,000 share options
were granted and 17,252,000 share options were lapsed
and no share option was exercised.

As at 31 December 2012, the total number of outstanding
share options under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme
were nil share options and 40,000,000 share options
respectively.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Director or the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the Listing Rules, during the year and up to the date of
this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company has complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2012 with the Code of Best Practice (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge or its Directors as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee currently
comprises Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael (Chairman), Mr.
CHAN Chun Fai and Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield. The
audit committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditors the financial
reporting matters including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On Behalf of the Board

LIU Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 48 to 163, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

77 Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

<" 7 Independent Auditor’s Report
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
27 March 2013

H'E"rdéb'endent Auditor’s Report
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«* 7 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
A
meaZHWER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BisE AR¥T ARET T
Turnover ] 9 979,424 214,480
Cost of sales 58 AR (628,113) (203,138)
Gross profit EX 351,311 11,342
Other operating income HAb & EWA 9 1,844 8,537
Change in fair value of investment properties X EMERNRBE L E 19 20,100 12,999
Change in fair value of convertible bonds ABRES AR BEZE 34 (4,139) 45,393
Gain on extinguishment of consideration IR E Z YW
payable 35 - 6,006
Selling and distribution costs HE Ko AR (14,468) (15,116)
Administrative expenses THER (25,356) (23,510)
Finance costs B #5 A AN 11 (11,475) (24,525)
Profit before taxation MR AR R 317,817 21,126
Income tax expense FTiSfi s 12 (176,921) (2,935)
Profit for the year ERER 13 140,896 18,191
Exchange differences arising on R E SN 7 B
translation of financial statements BRREEMER =5
of foreign operations and total other RENE M2 EBA
comprehensive income for the year ok 3,538 11,905
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEIMAEZE 144,434 30,096
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: FRENEH (EE) :
Owners of the Company RARIZHEARAN 103,489 22,529
Non-controlling interests IEVE R 37,407 (4,338)
140,896 18,191
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREMEEBA
for the year attributable to: (X H) &%
Owners of the Company ARBZHEBA 107,027 34,434
Non-controlling interests JEFE I S 37,407 (4,338)
144,434 30,096
Earnings per share BRAF 15
Basic E-/N RMB11.99 cents RMB2.64 cents
AR%11.994L ARE2 644l
Diluted b RMBS.23 cents RMB1.69 cents
AR¥8.231l AREE1 691U
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As at 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-H=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2012 2011
—F--F —FF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B=E ARBT R AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI MR KRR 18 29,683 31,619
Investment properties REME 19 175,800 162,025
Prepaid lease payments MEERFIE 20 234 240
Goodwill GEES 21 184,231 184,231
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 22 - -
389,948 378,115
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 3,174 3,540
Properties under development EEME 24 - 971,642
Properties held for sale FEYE 25 746,701 64,762
Trade and other receivables B N HMEIWRR 26 18,606 62,400
Refundable deposit paid AREESE Y
for a possible acquisition ENATRERS 27 150,000 —
Prepaid lease payments MEBRHKIE 20 6 6
Held-to-maturity investments REZIHAKRSE 28 - —
Held-for-trading investments BIERSRGEZRE 29 53 219
Income tax recoverable A B FTEH = 27,717
Restricted bank deposits BRHHRITER 30 - 92,298
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFERIRE 31 196,668 136,693
1,115,208 1,359,277
Current liabilities nEBaE
Trade and other payables B o5 kEMEMNER 32 541,866 919,642
Income tax payable FERTFTERE 147,951 1,176
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITER 33 13,198 99,357
Convertible bonds AN E S 34 132,405 —
Consideration payable FERRE 35 48,815 -
884,235 1,020,175
Net current assets TREEEEE 230,973 339,102
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 620,921 717,217
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As at 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-H=+—H

2012 2011
—B-CF —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BiE ARBT R AREFT
Capital and reserves BXK#E
Ordinary share capital ERRAR AR 36 88,424 81,232
Convertible redeemable AJEEA ] BB BB LR
preference shares 37 152,006 184,653
Reserves E 125,705 (10,519)
Equity attributable to owners KRR BB NELEERE
of the Company 366,135 255,366
Non-controlling interests FEES MR R 62,912 75,505
Total equity R 429,047 330,871
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible bonds Bk ES 34 179,782 311,260
Consideration payable ERRE 35 - 44,645
Deferred taxation IR IE 38 12,092 30,441
191,874 386,346
620,921 717,217
The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 163 FASRI3E A BMER T —=F=

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 27 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Liu Feng
E-JF 22

Director

EZE

At LtEES=SERKENRE  YHT

JIESHEREE

Lau Sai Chung
2t R
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ =L ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREZHENEL
Convertible
Ordinary redeemable Share  Exchange Non-
share Share preference  Capital  options translation  General Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium shares  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
Lk TERTR HhE HiEsitE

B RtEE EEER KABHE 0GR AERR -RER MBS RHER 0 AR #8028
RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RWBO0D  RMBODD  RMBODD  RVBOO0

ARETL ARBTR ARBTR ARMTL ARETR ARBTL ARMTL ARMTR ARBTR ARETL ARETL AR

(Note (@) (Note (&) (Note(d)
(MtzFa) (M) (ko)
At 1 January 2011 REE—%-F-H 81232 38659 184653 13841 14378 (173 9487 - (358215 3BT 154733 486465
Profit o) for the year Ematl (§i) = - - - - - - - RS9 RS9 4By 1819
Other comprehensive income FREMRENA
for the year
- Bxchange differences arising - RAZsNEERE
on translaton of finandial BfEREE
tatements of foreign HELES
operation - - - - - 11905 - - - 11905 - 11905
Total comprehensive income ERRERALE
for the year - - - - - 1905 - - 2509 34434 (4338 30,09

Reversalof dividend paid to BREESATHE
non-controling interests of DR

a subsiary in pror year ZIREEE - - - - - - - - B B 4 B
Cancellation of equity-setted ~~ AUBMEREE 2

share-based payments LG - = - - (390 - - - 30 - - -
Acquistion of non-controling B SE B RS

nterests - - - - - - - (110800) - (1108000 (75293 (186,093)
At31 December 2011 RE2—f

TZA=1-A 81232 386529 184653 13841 1398 11732 9487 (1108000 (33529%) 255366 75505 330871
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et \\\
«* 7» Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
- ARBBDE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARZERAEL
Convertible
Ordinary redeemable Share  Exchange Non-
share Share preference  Capital  options translation  General Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium shares  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
Lk ERTR e FiEIM
Kk ROEE EELR ERRE fife HERG -RBG En8E ZiER ] B 4%
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'0C0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0C0  RMB'000
ARET ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note (3) (Note (b)) (Note (c)
(MtzFa) (M) ()

At 1 January 2012 W-Z-Z#-F-0 81232 386529 184653 13,841 13,988 13 9487 (1108000 (335296) 255,366 75505 330871

Profit for the year ERigR - - - - - - - - 103489 103489 37407 140,896

Other comprehensive income ~ EREMZENA

for the year
- Exchange differences arising ~ — RIEE Nt
on translation of finandial HERELN
statements of foreign ERZH
operation - - - - - 3538 - - - 3538 - 3538
Total comprehensive income  ERZERALE
for the year - - - - - 3,538 - - 103489 107,027 37407 144434
Recognition of equitysettled  HUEREE 2 ARHA
share-hased payment REBHRAH
expenses BXED - - - - 378 - - - - 378 - 378
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - (967) - - - 9673 - - -
Issue of shares upon conversion AERAERTER
of convertible redeemable BERARTRG
preference shares 7192 25455  (32647) - - - - - - - - -
Appropriations BR - - - - - - B8N - (B8 - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling 17 HiBA TR
interests of a subsidiary HisERZRE - - - - - - - - - - (50,000  (50,000)
At 31 December 2012 WZE2-ZF
== 88424 411984 152,006 13,841 8,057 15270 38259  (110,800)  (250,906) 366,135 62912 429047

Notes: Bt =E

@) The capital reserve represents the effect of the reorganisation (a) EXFEREASERSMA (ARAIEMmAK&E
of the Group through which the Company became the RSB AEE AR 2R AT]) Ri§—H
holding company of all group companies comprising WBARZRRERENMETEA 2 L -
the Group and capitalisation of shareholders’ loans by a
subsidiary.

(b) As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (b) epE NRAME ([RE ) ERRT - KL
(the "PRC"), certain subsidiaries in the PRC are required to MM B AR B ERB RSN (RIREREFE
appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior ZB1E) RRE10%IA—RI#EE > BEE%@EE
year losses) to a general reserve fund until the balance of the EEHFME AR 250% @ K18 2 B A A] BE
fund reaches 50% of its registered capital and thereafter any BlEd c —MEBS A AERHRAETE LB
further appropriation is optional. The general reserve fund 18 HEEFMEAR  EFEELZTEREK -
can be utilised to offset prior year losses, or for conversion —REEE DDA M EAR25% 27K ©
into registered capital on the condition that the general
reserve fund shall be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the registered capital after such utilisation.

@) The other reserve represents the difference between the (c) HtF@iEa=_—_T——F+_A—+—HAILF
consideration paid and the carrying values of non-controlling B2 BB BTSSRI fil M e 2 BREI B 2
interests acquired during the year ended 31 December 2011. =R o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-C—fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBEFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation b F5 B 317,817 21,126
Adjustments for: AEIEE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments HE BN I8 2 # 85 6 6
Change in fair value of convertible bonds MRESFAABELEE 4,139 (45,393)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BERGR®BZIRE
investments ZAREE 164 960
Change in fair value of investment REMELREBZEZH
properties (20,100) (12,999)
Depreciation of property, W% - M RSEITE
plant and equipment 1,778 1,904
Discount received on early settlement FhiE R EEERERER
of consideration payable gl - (982)
Equity-settled share-based payment AR AR 2 AR
expenses RERNZNAX 3,742 =
Finance costs IR DN 11,475 24,525
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 7 W (316) (1,281)
Gain on disposal of investment property HERFIEHEREME
under held for sale Z s - (765)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FEMFEZRERRE
of properties held for sale - 3,430
Impairment loss recognised in respect HIRRER 2 REEBR
of trade receivables 31 49
Impairment loss recognised in respect Hfth FEU AR X 2 BB 5 48
of other receivables = 1,000
Gain on extinguishment of consideration HHEENRE 2 W
payable = (6,006)
Interest income AU A (850) (1,652)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FEZRERBERE
in respect of inventories (464) (58)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised HEME 2 REBERMD
in respect of properties held for sale (1,577) (6,904)
Reversal of bad debts directly written off B EME 2 R E - (1,691)
Written back of other payables H fth A BR B ] - (52)
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEHR
in working capital EEHeNE 315,845 (24,783)
Decrease in inventories FERD 796 8,847
Increase in properties under development TR EEIE N (268,474) (216,706)
Decrease in properties held for sale FEYERD 563,635 67,932
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 NEMEWIRR
other receivables > () 43,688 (19,925)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 R EMERBRR
other payables (R ) 1810 (378,911) 571,324
Cash from operations REEBZHERA 276,579 386,689
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERHPBECEMER (5,921) (31,788)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax paid BT B L g E A (14,925) =
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZFB2BERAFE 255,733 354,901
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«* 7 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Refundable deposit paid for a possible AaeEEE BN
YA 3 4 A
acquisition ARERS (150,000) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment REME R k&E (26) (94)
Interest received B2 F 8 850 1,652
Proceeds from disposal of investment ﬁ%?%%%%ﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ :
properties, net of transaction costs MBRR SR 6,610 35,016
Decrease (increase) in restricted bank BRHIFTETRLD (L)
deposits 92,298 (59,522)
Repayment of consideration payable EEEMNKE — (19,651)
Proceed from disposal of investment ﬁ’%ﬁﬁffﬁ%&é@i \
property under held for sale, FISHR + MERRZ AR
net of transaction costs - 10,965
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBZHER L FE (50,268) (31,634)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED ‘
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITER (85,961) (285,294)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests SRR = NG Bl e
5 On
of a subsidiary BB (50,000) =
Interest paid ERFE (9,457) (23,728)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBZRER L FE (145,418) (309,022)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBASEEY2EMFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 60,047 14,245
EFFECT ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE Exgno g
RATE CHANGES (72) (580)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REDZEERELEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 136,693 123,028
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZRE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, g*ﬁf%ﬁﬁ@z’i N
represented by bank balances and cash AR BRRTEFRAS 196,668 136,693
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT TN
e KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE
1. GENERAL

China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt
company with limited liability. The shares of the Company
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

Other than the subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") whose functional currency
is Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional currency of the
Company and the remaining subsidiaries are Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$").

The Group adopted RMB as its presentation currency as
the directors of the Company consider that the major
operations are in the PRC and it is appropriate to present
the consolidated financial statements in RMB.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
Note 46.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments Severe Hyperinflation and Removal

to HKFRS 1 of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
Amendments Financial Instruments: Disclosures —

to HKFRS 7 Transfers of Financial Assets
Amendments Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying

to HKAS 12 Asset

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

1. —REHR

E R EEARAR (AR HRESE
ENMEKT T RHReERAR o KAARKRN
ERMARSHARAT (TBZFT]) TR L
?I'_TO

ARRZAMPER L TBLERXMUCNASF
HAE [RA)ER] —ERE -

BREREARKME ([FE]) KL 2B QA
ZHMREEER/ARE [ARK]) 50 KRF K
BRTHBAR BB RER ([BK]) -

HREFARARAIBETELLRB AN
AREZ2IGEEMBRRIDBINE - FibAR&E
ERAARESEZSIEEK -

ARRZEBEHRREZER  MHBARZ
TR2EHEINE M FEL6 -

A REETEEMB®RE
A ([ERMBREED )

gl

RAFE  AEBECEAELGHI2E ([F
BEFERE]) B2 AT RSEFTEE
PR S 2ER o

FEMBREELY  BESBEREIGEX
F15% (BFTA) RN E 2 B E B 5
FEM R EER MBTE: BE -8

F759 EFTA) MBEE
B G ER EERA — Y EHERR A

125k (BFTA) E

BRTIXAES  RAFERBE Y HRE
BRI ZEATAYL EHAKEAFENBEFE
ZHBRIBEMN K kR E R P& R
BEKTAEAFE -
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for
the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the
fair value model. As a result of the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12, the directors of the Company
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
located in the PRC are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
and that the presumption set out in the amendments to
HKAS 12 is rebutted. Accordingly, there will be no effect
of changes in accounting policies on deferred tax liabilities
on changes in fair value of investment properties located
in the PRC.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
investment properties located in Hong Kong were held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties through sale, and that the
presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not
rebutted. As a result of the application of the amendments
to HKAS 12, the Group does not recognise any deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of the investment properties
located in Hong Kong as, based on the best estimation of
the directors of the Company, the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties
located in Hong Kong. Previously, the Group recognised
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of
the properties were recovered through use.

s

2. BEHHIREBIEEBUBRE
ZA ([BRMBHREEA ] (@)

BERETERE125 (BITXR)ELEHRE : K
ElEEEE ]

RAFE  AEEBERXEATESFERE12
5 (BRTA) DELERIA - WEEBEE] - £t
HERT N MBRELS G ENFIN [KEY
XIBRAAAEBRAFEZREYE - EFtE
EERBEREBREEAEALEREYEME
B BRIFEREETR LB N TRES

AEBZERENERARAEEAAE - BT
EREBGTERIFE125 (BFIAX) - ARFE
SEEAKREZREYMEMASG  URBAEE
NRPEZREMFENEREEEHERZER
EVMEMBEE MR ENGE < EEAMET
B MEBEAEFE125E (BRIAX) FEZ R
RIS - Fitt > SRFTBRESH LN E
ZERENEARABEIEL CRTEHRBRE
WEZE -

ARRAEERR URBBZREVMFENAEBR
HEBEEMBERZREVEMBE S 22 BKE
MeEzAFEEAMSE  MEBSTERFE12
S (BRTAR) PRl 2 RV R - ERAES
SRFERE125% (BRTA) T - NEE I RER
NREBEBBCRENEFRARABESHEL ZIELT
MIE - DERBEARRES 2 &EMGT - A&
BN EREURB B ZMERBFE N EMAA
B - Al - ARBERMEREEBRBER
EzERIERRENERRIABZS SN
ZIRFETRIRLE L FERR
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77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied
retrospectively, resulting in the Group’s deferred tax
liabilities arising from the change in fair value of
investment properties being decreased by approximately
RMB1,808,000 and RMB261,000 as at 1 January 2011 and
31 December 2011 respectively, with the corresponding
adjustment being recognised in accumulated losses. In
addition, the application of the amendments has resulted
in the Group’s income tax expense for the year ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 being reduced
by nil and approximately RMB1,470,000 respectively
and hence resulted in the profit for the year ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 being increased
by nil and RMB1,470,000 respectively. However, the above
impact on the amounts of deferred taxation liabilities,
accumulated losses, income tax expense and profit for
the year reported in the consolidated financial statements
was set off against the corresponding changes in deferred
tax assets recognised in respect to unutilised tax losses of
same amounts.

The effect of changes in accounting policies on deferred
tax liabilities on investment properties was set off against
the corresponding changes in deferred tax assets related
to the tax loss recognised as detailed in Note 38. Hence,
no effect on the Group’s (i) financial results for the current
and prior periods; (ii) financial position as at 1 January
2011 and 31 December 2011; and (iii) the basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 and 2011.

s

2. BERAHIREBIEBEVBRSE
ZA ([BRMBHREEA ] (@)

BREFERE125 (BRI A)EEBE - |
CEEEE] (&)

BB ERNE125 (BF]A) B BHER - i
KEBR -_ZT—F—A—BE_T—F+
TRA=T—HXREREMELAEEH RLE
HMEAED IR HARKE1,808,000T AR
#261,0007T ' HEFABRERZTIBEER -
oh  MAZSEIASAERHEEZE_T——
F+-_A=+—HERZ-ZE—F+_A=+—
AEFEZFAE/RIZEDBBLHOARES T
NHAR¥1,470,0007T - At HE T ——
F+-_A=+—BEk=_FT——FF+_HA=+—
AEFEZBFoREINARBETLREARK
1,470,0007T ° AT © LB EEE P HERE
2 BEERIBEE - 2FEE - FIEHRX
ERFREMNcEB 2 EETAREREAETA
HEBEMERZEERIBEE ZBEEEIK
3H ©

SHHREPHRENEZELERRBE LY
ENEHEDERNGERARERETEHRRE
ECHEEE  FHIMNMHEIS - Fitt - B
5 7K 5= B (i) AN B ) Ko B 1 B 2 B A% 5648 ¢ (i)
R_F——F—A—BR=_F——F+=2H=
T—BZHMBRR R(NVBE=F——F k=
E——H4"A=t—"HULEFEZEREAK
BERNERTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

New a

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

nd revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1

2009 - 2011 Cycle?
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs -
Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures*

Amendments to HKFRS 10

HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities?

11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

HKAS 19

HKAS 27

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

(as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits?

(as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements?
(as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®
HK(IFRIC)* - Interpretation Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
("Int") 20 of a Surface Mine?

HK(IFRIC) represents the Hong Kong (International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Committee)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
Eglifive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
éf()flgfive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Eggjfive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include
the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements, the amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment and the amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position
only when the retrospective application, restatement or
reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement
of financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
classified as property, plant and equipment when they
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment in
HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and transaction costs of an equity transaction should
be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group has
already adopted this treatment.

s

2. BERAHIREBIEBEVBRSE
ZA ([BRMBHREEA ] (@)

REB-ZHFAABRMzERMBREERZ
ERNFEF-—FEYZFERE
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7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities and Amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to
disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for
financial instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
also be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective
until annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
with retrospective application required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS
7 may result in more disclosures being made with regard
to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the
future.

2. BEHHIREBIEEBUBRE
ZA ([BRMBHREEA ] (@)
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77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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“ 77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS
after 1

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed

review

has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described

below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only
one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition,
HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10
to deal with complex scenarios. Overall, the application
of HKFRS 10 requires a lot of judgement. The application
of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any of the
control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
investment with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under
HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting or proportionate consolidation.
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with
earlier application permitted provided that all of these
standards are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these five standards will have a significant
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception
to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity,
except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate
to the investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required
to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss.
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77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to
be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with early application permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will have no effect on the Group as the
Company is not an investment entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the new standard may affect certain
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and
income statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1,
a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as
a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. However,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group'’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwiill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss, if any.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
rights using the straight-line method.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
development expenditure.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and applicable selling expenses.

On completion, the properties are transferred to properties
held for sale at their carrying values on the date of
transfer.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
development expenditure attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated selling expenses at the end of
the reporting period, or by management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
four categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”), loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in other operating income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial asset held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in administrative expenses or
other operating income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

¢ 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
refundable deposit paid for a possible acquisition, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
The Group designated investment in a trust fund as
held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated investments in unlisted
equity securities as available-for-sale financial assets.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

¢ 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL,
of which the interest expense is included in finance costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, secured bank borrowings and consideration
payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Convertible bonds issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivatives) are designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At the end of the
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, the
entire convertible bonds are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Convertible redeemable preference shares

Convertible redeemable preference shares issued by the
Company is classified as equity. Preference share capital is
classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable
only at the Company's option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on preference share capital are
classified as equity and recognised as distributions within
equity.

For convertible preference shares which have a cumulative,
non-discretionary fixed dividend payable to the holders,
the fair value of the obligation to distribute the dividend is
recognised as liability.
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying value and fair value
less costs to sell.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months
or less. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined above.

Bank deposits which are restricted to its use are included
in “restricted bank deposits”. Restricted bank deposits
are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
sales related taxes.

(1) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and
titles have passed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of the properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the risks and rewards
of properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of the relevant properties have
been completed, the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers and collectability of related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under receipts
in advance.

(i) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of
grant is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to business associates

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and will
be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of
the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading of exchange translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

¢ 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Legal title of buildings

As detailed in Notes 18 and 19, certain of the Group's
buildings have not been granted legal title from the
relevant government authorities before 14 August 2012.
Although, the Group has not obtained the relevant
legal title as at 31 December 2011, the directors of
the Company having regard to the legal opinion had
recognised the buildings on the grounds that they
expected the legal title to be obtained in the near future
with no major difficulties and the Group in substance were
controlling these buildings.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Litigation claim

As detailed in Note 43(a), the Company received a writ of
summons from an independent third party which brought
civil action against the Company for compensation
and damages in relation to the disposal of its former
wholly-owned subsidiary, Magic Gain Investments Limited.

In addition, as detailed in Note 43(c), the Company
received a writ of summons from a law firm for the
compensation of legal fee which the PRC lawyer assisted
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
the investigation of the fund recovery case.

With reference to the legal advice, the directors of the
Company expect that there will not be any material
adverse financial effect on the earnings, net assets and
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries and no
provision for claim has been made for both years.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group's
investment properties located in Hong Kong were held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties through sale. Therefore, in
measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying values of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)

For the Group's investment properties located in the PRC,
the directors of the Company concluded that the Group’s
investment properties located in the PRC were held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties located in the PRC, the directors of
the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying values of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account their estimated residual values. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve management’s
estimation. The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such a difference
may impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Details of
impairment testing on goodwill are set out in Note 21(b).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates such as the future revenue
and discount rates. No impairment was provided for both
years.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
PRC. The provision of the land appreciation tax is
based on management’s best estimates according to
the understanding of the requirements set forth in the
relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual land
appreciation tax liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its land
appreciation tax calculation and payments with the tax
authorities for its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated net realisable value of properties held for sale

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale by using prevailing market data
such as most recent sales transactions and internal
estimates of cost based on quotes from contractors.
These estimates require judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions
in nearby locations, rate of new property sales,
marketing costs (including price discounts required to
stimulate sales), the legal and regulatory framework
and general market conditions. At 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of properties held for sale was
approximately RMB746,701,000 (2011: RMB64,762,000),
net of impairment loss of RMB23,547,000 (2011:
RMB25,124,000).

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made to
the Group's properties under development, the directors
of the Company takes into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market value (i.e.
the estimated selling price less estimated costs to sell)
less estimated costs to completion of the properties. An
allowance is made if the estimated market value is less
than the carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value
of properties under development is less than expected as
a result of a change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
provision for impairment losses may result. No impairment
was provided for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end
of each reporting period. The fair value was based
on valuations on these properties conducted by an
independent firm of professional valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness,
as determined by the review of their current credit
information. The Group continuously monitors collections
and payments from its customers and maintains a
provision for estimated credit losses based upon its
historical experience. Credit losses have historically been
within the Group’s expectations and the Group will
continue to monitor the collections from customers and
maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit losses.
At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately RMB6,843,000 (2011:
RMB24,242,000), net of impairment loss of approximately
RMB5, 172,000 (2011: RMB5,187,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and estimated selling prices. The cost of
inventories is written down to the net realisable value when
there is objective evidence that the cost of inventories
may not be recoverable. The amount written off to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is the
difference between the carrying value and net realisable value
of inventories. In determining whether the cost of inventories
can be recovered, significant judgements are required. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst other
factors, the duration and extent and the means by which
the amount will be recovered. These estimates are based on
the current market and past experience in sales of similar
products. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor actions in response
to changes in market condition.

At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately RMB3,174,000 (2011: RMB3,540,000).
No impairment was provided for both years.

Fair values of convertible bonds

The fair values of the convertible bonds involve assumptions
on the Company’s credit spread, discount rate, expected
credit rating and future cash flows. Should these
assumptions change, there would be material changes
to the valuation. At 31 December 2012, the fair value of
convertible bonds was approximately RMB312,187,000
(2011: RMB311,260,000), with increase in fair value of
convertible bonds of approximately RMB4,139,000 (2011:
decrease of RMB45,393,000) recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Amortised cost of consideration payable

The directors of the Company use their best estimation
to determine the effective interest rate in calculating the
amortised cost of the consideration payable, with reference
to the market rates. Should the estimates applied are
different, the carrying value of this consideration payable
will be changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB39,256,000 (2011: RMB41,526,000)
available for offset against future profits. Based on
management’s estimate on the future profit stream of
group entities, a deferred tax asset in relation to these
unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes secured bank borrowings as disclosed in
Note 33 and convertible bonds as disclosed in Note 34,
net of restricted bank deposits as disclosed in Note 30,
bank balances and cash as disclosed in Note 31 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. HMKIH
Categories of financial instruments M TRER
2012 2011
—E——fF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - -
Held-to-maturity investments BEZIHAKRE = -
FVTPL — held-for-trading investments BEARBEFABR — FE
RHREZRE 53 219
Loans and receivables B EWERK
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREREMBESEEY) 355,578 255,521
355,631 255,740
Financial liabilities BKasE
Amortised cost BEHA AN 118,128 178,072
FVTPL — designated as at FVTPL BAREFAER — BT
RIBASEFAERR 312,187 311,260
430,315 489,332

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
refundable deposit paid for a possible acquisition,
held-to-maturity investments, held-for-trading investments,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, secured bank borrowings, convertible
bonds and consideration payable. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk
() Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 7% (2011: 67%) of the
Group’s sales for the year ended 31 December 2012
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sales, whilst
almost 10% (2011: 68%) of costs for the year ended 31
December 2012 are denominated in currencies other than
the group entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the relevant group
entities at the reporting date are as follows:

«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

() Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to US$ currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2011: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2011: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year where RMB strengthen 5% (2011: 5%) against
the relevant currency. For a 5% (2011: 5%) weakening
of RMB against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit or loss for the
year.
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RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBFT
Impact on profit or loss for the year HERNEBR 2 E (119) (68)

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding
bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables denominated in US$ at the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The interest income is derived from the Group’s current
and fixed deposits that carry interest at the respective
banking deposit rate of the banks located in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank deposits (see Note 31 for details of
these deposits) and variable-rate borrowings (see Note 33
for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s bank deposits are short-term in nature and
the exposure of the interest rate risk is minimal and no
sensitivity to interest rate risk is presented.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of base
lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China and
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

Sensitivity analysis

As of 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general 50
basis point (2011: 50 basis point) increase or decrease in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease or increase the Group's profit for the year and
accumulated losses by approximately RMB55,000 (2011:
RMB381,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents directors’ assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31
December 2011.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iif) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
convertible bond and investment in listed equity securities.
The Group’s exposure to other price risk for investment in
listed equity securities is minimal and no sensitivity analysis
to other price risk is presented.

Equity price risk on convertible bonds

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of the
conversion option component of the convertible bonds at
the end of the reporting period which therefore exposed
the Group to equity security price risk.

Equity price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting dates.
If the stock price inputted to the valuation model had been
5% (2011: 5%) higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the profit for the year ended 31 December
2012 would increase by approximately RMB3,531,000
(2011: RMB3,763,000) or decrease by approximately
RMB2,986,000 (2011: RMB3,609,000) respectively,
principally as a result of the changes in fair value of the
convertible bonds.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to the failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 43.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses have been made for irrecoverable amounts.

¢ 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC including Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 25% (2011: 0%) and 47% (2011:
38%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and authorised
banks in the PRC with high-credit ratings.

In respect of the credit quality of the refundable deposit
paid for a possible acquisition, 70% of the equity interest
of the target company is pledged in favor of the Group
as at the end of the reporting period. As a result, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the credit
risk is low.

For properties that are pre-sold but development has not
been completed, the Group typically provides guarantees
to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties
for an amount up to 70% of the purchase price of the
individual property. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage during the period of guarantee, the bank
holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon. As the
mortgage loans are secured by the properties with current
market price higher than the guaranteed amounts, the
management considers it would recover any loss incurred
arising from the guarantee provided by the Group.

«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the

7. BIRREBEEEERBE (&)

RBESEAR

EEERPECEBRANBESR  ~AEESEXR
VHFREEBRRENNRE LR FEY
ARAEENEERTESYRERSRKE
WEE - ERESERERITERZMNA RER
ERROZER -

TR ARSI B AR IR 5 FE RO B BRI AK - AR E
BREHTHNAOIMER - ZXRDEAEE
ANFORFEARALAT KA ERHRIRR
TREREERR - LER  EAREXER
FEROBITERCATARERR (BEWRTE
DEAREERBITEEERN) - RA3E0TAERM B A
EREHADRIEHEEERRETE -

earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise the rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity tables

AZREINTHERASRESRE - EF

8 i

i

FEBRERFFEMART - RMBREB B A

B H) R R ARG

At 31 December 2012

R=2-Z%#+=A=t-H
More than More than

On demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total
or within less than lessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount

REX BE-F BEMF FERZ
F—FR BRER BRFR BBEE RERELE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR AR%TR ARBTR ARMTRT AR%TR

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTERKEE

Trade and other payables B 7 LA AR 56,115 = = = 56,115 56,115
Secured bank borrowings BREARTER 13,968 - - - 13,968 13,198
Convertible bonds AR E 133,125 184,508 - - 317,723 312,187
Consideration payable EHRE 49,663 g g g 49,663 48,815
Financial quarantee contracts HBERAR 428,962 - - - 428,962 -
681,833 184,598 - - 866,431 430,315
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

——F+_A=+—HLHFE

7. BMKEREBEEEERBE (&)
RBESEE (&)

At 31 December 2011
RZE—E+ZA=+-H

More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
BBk e HRBRT KB
—FR BRER BRER BELE ReneHE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTE AEETT ARETR AREBTRr ARETT AEETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ETERKEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b ERERR 34,070 - - - 34,070 34,070
Secured bank borrowings EHRRETED 108,294 = = 108,294 99,357
Convertible bonds A#kES 5,190 134,503 86,509 - 326202 311,260
Consideration payable ERKE 1,254 50,177 - - 51,431 44,645
Financial quarantee contracts BB ERER 266,904 = = 266,904 =
415,712 184,680 186,509 786,901 489,332
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are BEAREXERKRRZRITEEHTFAL
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band REHE SN RERE—ER] 26 F'ﬂ $E.
in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2012 NeRZFE—Z—F+_HA=1+T—HEKZ
and 31 December 2011, the aggregate undiscounted F+ZA=+—H " %ZER ?ﬂﬁ{&ZﬁiHEfﬁﬁ
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted SEIREROBARMT,212,000T K AR
to approximately RMB7,212,000 and RMBS,470,000 #8,470,0007T ° = % 2 & H ¥ B 16 4R 0 4% -
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial ARBESTRERTAIEITEEERAKE

position, the directors of the Company do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such bank loans will be
repaid in nine (2011: ten) years after the reporting date in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows will amount to approximately
RMB7,757,000 (2011: RMB9,202,000).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
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amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee for loans procured by the purchasers of the
Group's properties. Based on the expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end
of the reporting period.

8. FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments;

o for option based derivative, the fair value is
estimated using option pricing model (for example,
the Binomial model); and

o the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is
determined using option pricing models where
the key assumptions are the probability of default
by the specified counterparty extrapolated from
market-based credit information and the amount of
loss, given the default.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values due to
their immediate or short-term maturities.

The directors of the Company also consider that the fair
value of the non-current portion of liabilities approximates
to their carrying amount as they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

¢ 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. FAIR VALUE (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

8. QR{EME
ERGEUBRRRFERNIAETE

TREREAA BT HERETENTB LA
ot RRABRARERES A —E=M

« E-RAAEHEDABNEELAME
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At 31 December

BWt=B=t-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ b F=R it
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
8- %% ZB-“f —F-——4% ZB-"f —T--F ZF--fF —T-F
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%®Tn ARETT AR%Tn ARETT AR%TR ARETL
Financial asset NHEE
Held-for-trading investments HER ARG RE 53 219 . - . E 53 219
Financial liabilities at fair RARETAER
value through profit or loss ZBBEE
Convertible bonds R ES - - 312,187 311,260 - - 312187 311,260
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the RAFEERBEFE  F—REAF_H o EW
current and prior years. MR o
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9. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 9. EHEENHMEEFEWA

INCOME

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside

customers less sales related taxes.

LERBEASEHETINRERPERMZERE
FEWOF BRI H E B TR -

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as REBFANLEESNAT :
follows:
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFIT
Turnover -]
Sales of automation products and HEBMLEMKRETF
electronic components Tl 2 WA 67,292 143,585
Sales of properties SIES RPN 904,409 63,838
Gross rental income from investment BEMEZHEKRA
properties (Note i) e (MIETi) 7,723 7,057
979,424 214,480
Other operating income HAth & @ U A
Bank interest income RITHEMA 850 1,652
Discount received on early settlement HIRFEERNRE
of consideration payable (Note 35) WeER 2 #7740 (F$3E35) - 982
Exchange gain, net VBB 5 A 85 1,657
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMSHE 2 W 316 1,281
Gain on disposal of investment property HERELNEREDE
under held for sale 2 Wa - 765
Reversal of bad debts directly written off BB 2 AR - 1,691
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BAGFE 2 REEERED
in respect of inventories 464 58
Written back of other payables LA JE A< AR B (] - 52
Sundry income FEIEIA 129 399
1,844 8,537
Total revenues BmUA 981,268 223,017
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9. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING
INCOME (Continued)

«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

9. EXBERHMEEBWA &)

Note PEE
(i) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (i REEZHASWAFELIWNAT -
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Gross rental income from investment properties REWMEZBSWARTE 7,723 7,057
Less: outgoings (included in cost of sales) B S GEASEERKA) (1,498) (613)
Net rental income from investment properties REWEZ WA FHE 6,225 6,444

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Property - Development of properties
development in the PRC.
Property - Rental income arising from
investment investment properties situated
in the PRC and in Hong Kong.
Trading - Trading of electronic components,
mobile phone modules and
automation products.
Technology - Provision of technical and

consultancy services including
the provision of automation
products on a project basis.

10. D EEFR
REBRPREDERBEIGOALRESS
(NEELERESE) 2R EH - MERK
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BREEFBVEREEDFH  AEBZHRE N
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BELEM °
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

Property
development

NEER
2M 00

“E-ZF 3% ZE-IF

RMB'000  RMB'000

ARMTR ARETT AR%TR

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE
10. D EPER (&)
(a) DBRAREE

REBZWAREE 2 DMIZARE RKEE D
EIE IR N

Property

investment Trading Technology Consolidated
NERE g5 B Vi
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“5——% ZB-Z%f -F-F ZB-Tf “F--% ZB-2F "%
RMBOOO ~ RMB'O00  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT

7057 © 61,292 143585 = - 9944 214480

19,662 (548) (839) =

350,508 3817

Turnover EE 2 904409 63838
Seqment profit (oss) 8 (B8) &7 325579 (15,006)
Change i fair value of convertbe bonds T AREH A1 E &
Change in fair alue of held-fortrading ~— BIER AFBZRE

investments LARER
Discount received on early settlement IRFERENRE

of consideration payable WBzH

Gain on extinguishment of consideration ~ HEAERLE 24
payable
Bank interest income FMSHRA

Equity-setted share-based payment expenses  MAIE & £ E 7 M7

RERNXNRR
Unallocated corporate expenses APEAFRR
Finance costs BRI
Profit before taxation B AR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 3. Segment loss/profit represents the loss / profit of
each segment without allocation of change in fair values of
convertible bonds, change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments, discount received on early settlement
of consideration payable, gain on extinguishment of
consideration payable, bank interest income, equity-settled
share-based payment expenses, central administration
costs, directors” emoluments and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
(board of directors) of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

(4139) 45393

(164) (960)
- 982

= 6,006

850 1,652
(3.742) =

(14,021) (11,39
(11475) (24,525

37817 21126

gESH v A BRENTIMAZASEE
SRR AAR - HBEE, mFES BRI
AREESFAAEEE  BEXSARZEE

ZARnBEEE - RIEREERSREKI 2T
e mEEARE ZWE - RITFBUWA - LA
BB 2RO BERNSIMNASL - AR
RER EEHFMEVBKAMELZEER
BRE 2wl o Ik DE TASEMNEEZLE R
KE (Ex2) ARERIBEREET NG
B °
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

10. ZEEFR @)
(b) ABEERAME

AEBEERABzTRHEN M2

DH

liabilities by reportable segment: K
Property Property
development investment Trading Technology Consolidated
IEE NERE g% BR aff
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
% F -3 S%-SF “FT-F SR F |2 SRSF CF-F S¥-SF CTF
RMB'000  RMB'000 = RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 = RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT
Segment assets NHEE 940,694 1273395 = 177,069 162,306 9,527 13325 - - 112729 1,449,026
Unallocated corporate assets AORLEEE
~ Refundable deposit paid for - MRbEERZER
a possible acquistion RERS 150,000 -
- Income tax recoverahle - i EprEH = 7
- Held-for-trading investments - RSB IRE 53 219
~ Restricted bank deposits - BRSBTS - 9298
- Bank balances and cash - BEERES 196,668 136,693
- Others —Hth 31,145 31,439
Consolidated total assets FRAEGE 1,505,156 1,737,392
Segment liabilites PHaE (523,744)  (904,991) (672) (162)  (14,662) (12,939 - - (539,078) (918,092)
Unallocated corporate liabilties APELEEE
- Consideration payable -ERRE (48,815)  (44,645)
~ Income tax payable ~ EFEH (147.951)  (1,176)
~ Secured bank borrowings - BEARONER (13,198)  (99,357)
- Convertible bonds - kES (312,187)  (311,260)
- Deferred taxation - ELHE (12,092) (30 441)
- Others —Hth (2,789) 550)
Consolidated total libilities GRafREE nmww1mmn

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than refundable deposit paid for a possible
acquisition, income tax recoverable, held-for-trading

REESAZENSIEREAMDEERNE
Hy -

J BTl NIBEEE ENAIREERS
AIWEIFRER - HIEX BB 2EE -
BREBITERANBITEFRIRS T

investments, restricted bank deposits and bank BEEZNRE %é‘é%’\* BER: SR
balances and cash. Assets used jointly by reportable #* A Ziéfé)—ﬁﬁz&—f ko EBATIE A
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues ZEEEDR R

earned by individual reportable segments; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than consideration payable, income tax
payable, secured bank borrowings, convertible
bonds and deferred taxation. Liabilities for which
operating segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

c KBREMKE - BAAGEH - AEMRT
B Tﬁkﬁ%&ﬁkmﬁ%'ﬁﬁ
BEANEEREDE - KEDHH
ZRBEDHEERE ﬁ“ﬂﬁ?%%ﬁ
[
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(o)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss

10. oEERE (&)
() EHtbpZEe

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AAEDBEMNIBER D FBEEREFTAZK

or segment assets: 1 -
Property Property
development investment Trading Technology Unallocated Consolidated
hxER VIES g5 B L) aff
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
-8-_f "F-% ZB-F 3% ZB-_F T -4 |282-°F "T-F ZB-°F T-F ZB-F T-F
RMB000  RVMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'000 RMB'0C0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 = RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETrL ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Other segment information: EthAHER
Addition to non-current assets  AEFRBEE
(Note) (M) 2 % - - - = = - - - 2 %
Amortisation of prepaid lease  FEBNFEZEH
payments - = = - 6 b - - - - 6 6
Change in fair value of FEMED L E
investment properties i 4 - - (20100) (12999) = - - - - - (@00 (12999
Change in fair value of HERAREL
held-for-trading investments ~~ REZAREEH = = = - - - - - 164 %0 164 %0
Depreciation of property 0% #ER
plant and equipment RENE 5 87 - - 1 90 - - 1,702 1721 1778 1,904
Gain on disposal of investment ~ (HERENE 2 IE
propemes - = (31 6) (1 ,281) = - = - = - (31 6) (1 ,281)
Gain on disposal of investment ~ HER{EHE
property under held for sl FENE 2z - = = (765) = - - - - - - (763)
Impaiment loss recognisedin & TR
respect of trade receivables LREER - = - - 3 49 - - - = 31 49
Impairment loss recognised in A EIRERT 2 fE
respect of ather receivables Bl - - - - - 1,000 - - = = - 1,000
Impairment loss recognised BENEZHERE
In respect of properties
held for sale - 340 - - - - - = = = - 340
Reversal of impairment loss BERELAE
fecognised i respect EREE
of inventories - = - = (464) (58) = - - - (464) (58)
Reversal of impairment loss BEMEZAE
recognised in respect of FRRE
properties held for sale (157) (6904 - - - - - = = - (s 69
Whitten back of other payables  Eft 531 - - - - - (2) - = = - - (2
Reversal of bad debis directly — E#EHI 2 2B ER
witten off - (1679 = = = (15) - - - - - (16

Note:

Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

it : JERBEETERMBIA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) Other segment information (Continued)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision

maker but not included in the measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

——f+-A=t—HLEE

10. oHER (&)
() EHtboZER (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Eﬁﬁﬁ}_%%“ﬁg&“%ﬁéﬁﬁ PEFAGE D #

RS BEENK

Property Property
development investment Trading Technology Unallocated
NRER ESE g3 2011 AR

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 200 2012 200
“%-2fF “3——F ZB-CF CT—f ZB-CF
RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000 - RMB'000  RMB'000

“F——F 2§-CF

RVB'O00 - RMB'000  RMB'000 - RMB'000

Consolidated
aff
2012 201

= = e 2
RM3'000

RMB'000  RMB'000

AERTR ARETL ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETL ARRTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETT

Bank interest income

BTHEMA = = - = - - - - (850) (165 (@50 (1652
Finance costs BB - - - - - - - - 11475 24525 11475 24525
Equity-settled share-based W’éﬁuﬁﬁiﬁzu fifd
payment expenses ERNLARL - - - = - - - - 3m - 3m -
(d)  Geographical information (d HEER
For the year ended 31 December 2012, 100% (2011: BHE-_T——F+ZA=+—HLEFE BR¥

100%) of the Group's revenue and assets were derived
from customers and operations based in the PRC including

REBE100% (ZF——F -
REBz7WahEEHNRTR (BEEE )

100%) RERF

Hong Kong (country of domicile) and accordingly, no (FIEER) R EZIAEE 2 HEH LR
further analysis of the Group’s geographical information is K} o

disclosed.

(€)  Revenues from customers of the corresponding (e) HEFERERFMEXTBLHAEER

years contributing over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group are as follows:

BEEBBI0%MFERBLT ¢

Segment 2012 2011

7 5B —E——fF —T——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AR¥TT

Customer A ZEA Trading = N/A* T 3E i * 57,590
Customer B =B Trading 25 N/A* 38 * 39,197
* The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of i B ALAEBEFEAR SR BB ATIEIRI0% °

the total revenue of the Group in the respective year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BBRAE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
Interest expenses on: MEFX :
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —ARAFAREEE
within five years ZERITIER 4,293 18,403
— convertible bonds — AR ES 5,164 5,318
— consideration payable — EBRRE 1,247 147
— bank overdraft —RITEX - 7
Imputed interest expense on consideration ERREBZHEFNEHX
payable (Note 35) (F$5E35) 4,652 18,491
Total borrowing costs EEER A 15,356 42,366
Less: interest capitalised (Note 24) R - BAMEFIB (FI5E24) (3,881) (17,841)
11,475 24,525
Note: The capitalisation ratio of borrowings for year ended 31 iz 82— —F+_A=1T—"HBILFEEEZE
December 2012 is ranged from 7.36% to 7.94% (2011: NMELEENFEFT36%E7.94%2H (=ZF—
7.15% to 7.94%) per annum. —F :715%=E7.94%) °
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRBBi<H
2012 2011
—E-TF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMT ARETT
Current tax: = AT -
Hong Kong Profits Tax provided for the year FABRBRENEH - 68
Over-provision in prior years AR SRR (14) -
(14) 68
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR (> EE TSR 92,820 4,214
92,806 4,282
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") A IR E R
(T LB ER ) 90,032 22
Deferred taxation (Note 38) EERIE (F15E38)
— Current year —REE (18,417) (1,369)
Withholding tax (Note d) B (MEEd) 12,500 -
176,921 2,935
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(d)

e MR MR

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the year ended 31 December 2012 as the
Group did not have any assessable profit subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of PRC subsidiaries of the Company was 25%
for both years.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. LAT has been provided
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions including land costs and the relevant
property development expenditures. According
to the State Administration of Taxation's official
circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally
upon sales of the properties, followed by final
ascertainment of the gain at the completion of the
properties development.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared by PRC subsidiaries
of the Group in respect of profits earned from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2012, deferred taxation of
approximately RMB4,194,000 (2011: Nil) has
been provided for the portion of profits that are
expected to be distributed by the PRC subsidiaries
and deferred taxation has been provided for the
remaining profits are expected to be distributed
in the foreseeable future. The withholding tax
represents the deferred tax liability arising on
undistributed profits to non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary in the PRC.

12.
(a)

FREBXH (&)

B BNIF WL L M F 2 5t R B
MBI E16.5%TH -

AR AEE T EBMANE BTG ZE
BERANE hWERE—ZE——-F+=-A=
+—HUEFEWBIERBEBFSTHEME -

BETPEARAMBECEMBIOL (T
EMBHE]D) REXMABHREE K
5l - KRB BB AR W A E
1225 % REMBIIA

TR ER BB IR AR B EER
Frel 2 3 EEL BET o THIEEM IR
HEZEIL30% E60% M IEIE T R 2 182
ELBHE EREETERBELIK
ARBEMEZESHEENR - RIE
BRUREABNE RS REEME
BETEREM T HIBER  2BRETK
MEBRRSEBEHEBAEESREELIRER

ZIE °

RETEECEMAERE B _TTNF
—A—BE BRAKEFEKELG
FERER 2 A ER A 2 EIRAE FH ek A
%

R-_ZE——F+_-_A=+—H8" ' K&H
HBHERTPENBEARDRZBOE
MEHELER EREEL AR4,194,000
T(ZE——F : 8) WEREHRA
RBARKEF DR FeRFEELBELER
HEE BHBERRBRATHFE L
RIZIEZHIMERDREFSI R ZEE
FHIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, this PRC
subsidiary declared dividends of RMB200,000,000
(2011: Nil) and distributed to its two immediate
holding companies and non-controlling interests.
The two immediate holding companies with
shareholding of 50% and 25% were incorporated
in the BVI and Hong Kong and subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 10% and 5% on
the distributions of profits respectively. The non-
controlling interests with shareholding of 25% was
incorporated in the PRC and therefore not subject
to any withholding tax on the distribution of profits.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

12. FiBHXH &)

(d (&)
HE-_T——-—F+-A=+—BLtF
B ZPEWBRARAIERBKREARKE
200000000n:( T——F:8) I

&%Em%E&ﬁW“T&#ﬁ%E
1&Aoﬂﬁxgﬁ¢ NE (D RI#EAES50%
&B%Ik%> PRIRNEBRE ZHE ME
B - Ao RRRF D IKZ210%
ME5%EMTEMNT - JEITEHI S (A
25% 1R HE) Ty B S - Bt
BAE G M DR SR ERITBF -

RERNZAERIE AN EGES 2ERER

the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement RE R AR (BE)  STEWT
of comprehensive income as follows:
2012 2011
—EF-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARBFIT
Profit before taxation B A% BT a A 317,817 21,126
Tax calculated at rates applicable to profits ERREMBER 2ERFRE
in the respective tax jurisdiction concerned MM RAE 2518 82,159 3,554
LAT T HuIBER 90,032 22
Overprovision in prior years DA FE B 5E R (14) _
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAHR< B2 HIBEZE
for tax purpose 7,048 7,033
Tax effect of income not taxable ERBUMAZ RIBLE
for tax purpose (325) (7,118)
Withholding tax (Note d, above) IR (MisEd © E3XX0) 12,500 =
Withholding tax on undistributed profit —fENEB AR Z XDk
of a subsidiary 7| DE: Do B 4,194 (556)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTEEBE HEXE 104 -
Tax effect of LAT TR ER 2 RIBLE (18,777) -
Income tax expense FrSHi < i 176,921 2,935

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 38.

EER A BRI TE38
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. FREF

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETTT
Profit for the year has been arrived 2k (FtA) LA T&IE
at after charging (crediting): ZFEEuN (BE)
Staff cost (including directors’ emoluments): EIRA (BEEEME) :
Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e IENX
HMEWH = 8,915 8,838
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIET AR 723 301
Equity-settled share-based payment LAREZRR 8 7 AR (9
expenses (Note 39) ARSI AR
(Fft5E39) 3,742 =
13,380 9,139
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments METENFIB 2 #iH 6 6
Auditor’s remuneration % ENRD B & 888 831
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BIERSGABZI-E
investments (included in administrative 2R (EEE)
expenses) (FFATTERER) 164 960
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AES BRFEER A
(included in cost of sales) (FTASHERA) 628,192 206,057
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #2 - 2 R REHITE 1,778 1,904
Impairment loss recognised in respect BRI Z
of trade receivables (included in BB
administrative expenses) (FFATTHER) 31 49
Impairment loss recognised in respect H fth R BR K2
of other receivables (included in BIEEE
administrative expenses) (GFATTHRER) = 1,000
Impairment loss recognised in respect HEVMEEHERZ
of properties held for sale BIEEE
(included in cost of sales) (T ABBERKAN) = 3,430
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FEMEBER
in respect of properties held for sale 2R EE B
(included in cost of sales) (Gt ASHER ) (1,577) (6,904)
Operating lease rentals of equipment R LEHRS 9 30
Operating lease rentals of rental premises HEMEZREHNEE 193 194
14. DIVIDEND 14. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

SNFHEFE N EMRS
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77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT TN
e KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

15. BREF

ARAEEAREERERNNEER N THIRE
ATEIBETH

ENBIEFENT

2012 2011
—E-ZF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Earnings &%
Earnings for the purpose of basic and MEFERARRBEE A
diluted earnings per share for the year L ERERRES
attributable to the owners of the Company BHRMmE 2 &7 103,489 22,529
2012 2011
—E-ZF %
‘000 ‘000
TR TFhx
Number of shares BB EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR INEFIE (e
for the purpose of basic earnings per share RERBMNME) 863,011 851,980
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEET AR TE
Share options issued by the Company RRAREITZ BIRHE
(Note a) (FtzTa) 118 =
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note b) HIRA R ES
(F$5EDb) = =
Conversion of convertible redeemable B2 {1 O 88 14 0] §E 3]
preference shares 1B Rg 394,737 484,211
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR INE Y8 (G E
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share fEESE 2R ms) 1,257,866 1,336,191
Notes: BEE -
@) The computation of diluted earnings per share does not (a) HREBE=—Z—F+=-_A=+—HILtEE ' K

assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise price of those options was higher than
the average market price of the Company’s shares for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds as the conversion price of those convertible
bonds was higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

DRI EBREN TR EE R AR AR T4
B - MU B AR R A R S P
HERE (715 o

(b) HREBZE-_ZE——Fr-_ZT——F+_A=1+—
BIEFEARRAESRATBBRESHERESR
RABIRMGDFHTE - Bt ESREERF R
EBERERZERREFEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS)

16. EIRA (TEHEESHE)

2012 2011

—EB-=F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e ITEREMEYI= 4,582 4,535

Retirement benefits scheme contributions R R TSI 561 270
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses — AREZSAEE 7 LARRID

RERHNNFX 1,061 —

6,204 4,805

Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong
employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group companies
(the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The mandatory contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to
a cap of HK$1,000 per month before 1 June 2012 and
HK$1,250 per month from 1 June 2012 onwards. During
the year ended 31 December 2012, a total contribution of
approximately RMB375,000 (2011: RMB87,000) was made
by the Group in respect of this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to a
state-managed retirement plan for all its employees at a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees.
The state-managed retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired
employees. Under the state-managed retirement plan, the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
a total contribution of approximately RMB186,000 (2011:
RMB183,000) was made by the Group in respect of this
scheme.

&g

AEBLZHEBERELHBTBARTMLES
EHEBIR ER BB MERTEESITE ([BEEE
2] - aEeFE BN RATHKETE - AV
EREAEE - BERBESHE  AKBEES
KERAR ([EX])) FHEEESAYKREHES
Z5% 2 WA (BE&EREFMUERTELED) BN
EHlEHER  BEREBEE ZAEFUERNA=Z
——FRNA—BZAIAEAEE1,000T AR
—E—_FXA—HBRUFABEE1,250TE
R-HZE—_TE——F+_A=1+—HILFE "
NEBE UL T EIE R B H K A RK375,0005T
—T——% : AR®87,0007T) °

R - BREBI

RIBFBARG ZERBRE - PEMBAFEA
MAREEMRE ZBEKEBKREFFEELDHF
HoFBAREEAFECNETEDLLL - H
REKBAFEEERNRRKEESINMER
Re  EERBEREAREFFTEZT  AEE
BRESFHFIITEHEMERRARES T R
REBAERERAE BE-_T—Z—F+=
A=+—HIEFE  AEBEFUTEIEL B H
R AR186,000L (ZFE——F : ARK
183,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2011: nine) directors and the chief executive were as

follows:

17. EERFETHAEME

(a)

EERFRTHRAEME

ERAXERANLZ (ZF——F: Afu) EFKE
2ITBABXN 2Bz T

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-S--F1-A=t-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Equity-settled
and other benefits  share-based
benefits in scheme payment
Fees kind contributions expenses Total
A4 NERGEEY
Rt BHER  URGAEH
ik il EfR WRAEX ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR  ARETR
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Chen Xian RELE - 1,355 48 998 2,401
Mr. Lau Sai Chung A REE - 1,243 48 499 1,790
Mr. Liu Feng B hE (M2 ——&
(appointed on 17 August 2012) NA+LREZE) - 558 - - 558
Mr. Xiong Jianrui ERlmts (W=E—=F
(resigned on 29 June 2012) NAZTNBAET) - 290 26 499 815
Ms. Xia Dan Xia Dan® £ - 452 40 499 991
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUEHTES
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael ERELE 145 - - 62 207
Mr. Chan Chun Fai RIS 4 145 - - 62 207
Mr. Ng Kwok Chun, Winfield REIETE 145 - - 62 207
Total &5t 435 3,898 162 2,681 1,176
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17. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. EERFETHAEME (&)

(a)

EENTETHRAEME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F1-A=T-BIL%E

Salaries, Retirement  Equity-settled
allowances and benefits  share-based
other benefits scheme payment
Fees inkind  contributions eXpenses Total
= IEREEL
KAt BINER  ARHARR
ik ENfla SEE  MIRRX agE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARBTT ARt  ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chen Xian REEE = 1396 5 = 1,401
Mr. Lau Sai Chung Bttt B A& = 1,280 13 = 1,293
Mr. Xiong Jianrui Bealm et = 712 9 - 721
Ms. Xia Dan Xia Dani L - 465 4 - 469
Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTEE
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael EELLE 150 - - _ 150
Mr. Chan Chun Fai RRELE (RZF——
(appointed on 30 June 2011) NAZTHEZMA) 75 - - - 75
Mr. Ng Kwok Chun, Winfield REREE (R-F——F
(appointed on 30 June 2011) NA=TBEZRT) 75 = = = 75
Mr. Chong Yiu Chik iEEsE (R2T—4%
(resigned on 30 June 2011) NAZTHEE) 75 = = = 75
Mr. Choi Kai Ming, Raymond BERRE (R-T—F
(resigned on 30 June 2011) NAZTHEE) 75 - - - 75
Total @t 450 3,853 31 - 4,334

Mr. Lau Sai Chung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group

during the two years ended 31 December 2012.

W RELEMARNRBTHAE - A LAWE
ZHe B REERTTHAHMRHERG 2 ME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2011: four) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are set out
in the above. The emolument of the remaining one (2011:
one) individual was as follows:

17. EERFETHRAEME (&)

(b) EREEEMS

AEBAARSFMENALF O (ZF
——F :OF) RARFZEFRETZTHA
B WEZHFME N EXHIH - Fer—5 (=
T——F: —%) BRI ALZHHMMT :

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind ¥4 - 28L R EME Y% 587 582

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRtEFETEI K 48 13
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses DAz &EE 7 LA (D

AEBRNINRAX 374 -

1,009 595

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZFHWINFATEBERA

No. of individuals

ETIHH
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to T Z=##1,000,0007T (48
approximately RMB807,000 ERHARMS07,000

(2011: RMB831,000))

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB807,000 to RMB 1,210,000
(2011: RMB831,000 to RMB1,246,000))

L (= -4 1 ARES
831,0007T)) - 1
FEI51,000,001 T B

1,500,000 (FHER LA

E#807,000c & AR

1,210,0007T (=& ——

& AR¥831,000E

AER#1,246,0007T)) 1 -

(c) No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the two years ended 31
December 2012.

() HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLME
FE - AEBEMERNLARREERETE
TBRAEXGEEHEEINMEIEAR
SIMMAEIMAREE R 2 B8 sk EARH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - HBRERE
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Motor
buildings improvements  Equipment Furniture vehicles Total
BELH
RkEF BEXHE R BA RE aE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR

cosT A
At 1 January 2011 RZE——

-A-8 34,190 4,960 2,522 306 873 42,851
Exchange realignment ERES (937) (41 (12) ®) (15) (1,013)
Additions B - - = 6 88 94
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F

+=A=1+-AH 33,253 4919 2,510 304 946 41932
Exchange realignment EiER (196) (8) ) 2) (3) (212)
Additions NE = = = 26 = 26
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F&

+-A=1+-A 33,057 491 2,507 328 943 41,746
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ 23i7E
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%

-A-8 2,710 2,623 2,484 200 519 8,536
Exchange realignment R ES (65) (28) (1) ®) (15) (127)
Provided for the year FREE 727 986 21 45 125 1,904
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F&

+-A=1+-H 3372 3,581 2,494 237 629 10,313
Exchange realignment ERESR (17) 3) 3) 2) (3) (28)
Provided for the year FREE 715 918 16 30 99 1,778
At 31 December 2012 W-B——F

+-A=1+-AR 4,070 4,49 2,507 265 725 12,063
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F

+-A=1t-H 28,987 415 - 63 218 29,683
At 31 December 2011 R-E——&

+=A=1+-H 29,881 1338 16 67 317 31,619

124 China Uptown Group Company Limited R & B AR A F Annual Report 2012 &3



e MR MR

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - HBRFRE (&)
(Continued)

(@)  The above items of property, plant and equipment (@) MNLEWE - #aEkREER L AH
are depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking AR ERIRATERUAERENE -
into account of their estimated residual values, at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and ~ Over the shorter of the term HELH 504F sk iR 0 4 F B
buildings of the lease or 50 years MEF (LB =A%)

Leasehold Over the shorter of the term MERE SE IR L FH
improvements of the leases or 5 years (ABRE&EBE)

Equipment 18% to 25% B 18%%225%

Furniture 18% to 25% RIE 18% £25%

Motor vehicles 18% to 30% TE 18% £30%

(b)  The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings by NIEHEEFTHREFZEREERTE:
shown above comprises:

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Medium-term lease held in: BAEPHBLOR
— Hong Kong — BB 17,329 17,917
— the PRC — 11,658 11,964
28,987 29,881

On 11 January 2006, the Group obtained a
court order from the People’s Intermediate Court
of Shenzhen to freeze certain buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of approximately
RMB11,658,000 (2011: RMB11,964,000) ("“Freeze
Buildings”) as a result of certain litigations against
a subsidiary of the Group in relation to certain
alleged guarantees and overdue bank borrowings
("Outstanding Amounts”). During the year ended
31 December 2010, such litigations were concluded
and the Group undergone debt restructuring in
the form of issuing convertible bonds to settle the
Outstanding Amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
relevant seizure had been released and the assets
were no longer frozen by the relevant authorities as
at 31 December 2011.

R_ZEERF—A+—H BARAEE
—RNB AR REELBBEEREIRITE
TEE ((MreRE]) MABBE THRA
AEBWR R RIFPRARERELZ
EREBLERREAEBRAENAR
#11,658,000L (ZE——F: ARK
11,964,00000) 2 X EZE W (R E W
¥) BE_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—H
HFE  ZFRACETERAEELE
BETABRBRESFRETEBEA -
AT MR EHE ©

BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—8HL*HF
B EHENEELHEER BEHEBEER
—E——F+_-_RA=+—HIICEHEA
HEARRES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - M RZE (&)
(Continued)

(d)  As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in the d WRZE——F+-_A=+—H  K£H
process of applying for the building ownership NERBRENEZFERE - AEEZ
certificates of the Freeze Buildings. A legal opinion PREAENRN -_E——F=A=-+=
provided by the Group’s PRC legal advisors on 23 HELHZEEREWR  AEZMEBAR
March 2012, confirmed that although the subsidiary A ARERRENMECLFER  RED
has not yet obtained the building ownerships X BERDBRZMBAR - RZF
certificates of the Freeze Buildings, the ownership —ZFNATHER  XEECEERLE
of the Freeze Buildings vested with the subsidiary. MEZFBER °

On 14 August 2012, the Group has obtained
the building ownership certificates of the Freeze

Buildings.
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REY=
2012 2011
—®——-fF —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
FAIR VALUE DRE
At beginning of the year R EA] 162,025 183,830
Exchange realignment bE H =58 (31 (1,069)
Disposals during the year (Note f) RERBE (HEEF) (6,294) (33,735)
Net increase in fair value recognised RNEBRERZ AL EEER
in profit or loss 20,100 12,999
At end of the year NE4 175,800 162,025
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

19. REWE (&)

(@)  The carrying value of investment properties shown (@) UEREMEZEEESRE :
above comprises:
2012 2011
B —ET——1F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Medium-term leases held in: BAERHRBELOR :
- Hong Kong — &B - 6,325
— the PRC — 175,800 155,700
175,800 162,025
(b)  All of the Group’s investment properties are held (b)) AEBZHEREVEHBERELEMEE
under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital RIS INERNEERBNFE RN
appreciation purposes and are measured using the NABEERGTE -
fair value model.
() The fair values of the Group’s investment properties (00 RZE—=ZFERZT——F+=ZHA=++

in Hong Kong and the PRC as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 were valued by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited (“Vigers”), independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group. Vigers has appropriate qualifications and
has recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuations
have been arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions.

—B > AREREBEELRTFEZRENE
ZARECHEANREIYERE B
RABXMEMBERHTEENGERA
[RAAE] (TR HT]) 7P - EURHT AEE
ENER YHEBFEERBI 2 FE
MR o [HETI2IRIF — i B AR
HZBUME 2 TERSERMIEL -
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< 7» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

On 11 January 2006, the Group obtained a court
order from the People’s Intermediate Court of
Shenzhen to freeze certain buildings of the Group
which included investment properties with a
carrying value of approximately RMB175,800,000
as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB155,700,000)
("Freeze Investment Properties”) as a result of
certain litigations against a subsidiary of the Group
in relation to certain alleged guarantees and
Outstanding Amounts. During the year ended 31
December 2010, such litigations were concluded
and the Group undergone debt restructurings in
the form of issuing convertible bonds to settle the
Outstanding Amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
relevant seizure had been released and the assets
were no longer frozen by the relevant authorities as
at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in the
process of applying for the building ownership
certificates of the Freeze Buildings. A legal opinion
provided by the Group’s PRC legal advisors on 23
March 2012, confirmed that although the subsidiary
has not yet obtained the building ownerships
certificates of the Freeze Investment Properties,
the ownership of the Freeze Investment Properties
vested with the subsidiary. On 14 August 2012,
the Group has obtained the building ownership
certificates of the Freeze Investment Properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain
investment properties located in Hong Kong with
an aggregate carrying values of approximately
RMB6,294,000 (2011: RMB33,735,000) were
disposed of at a total consideration of approximately
RMB6,610,000 (2011: RMB35,016,000). A gain of
approximately RMB316,000 (2011: RMB1,281,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2012.

19.
(d)

REWE (&)

RZZEZERF—A+—H BARAEE
—RIW B A F EELAEAER KK
CEMBESE THAL  AEBRE AR
IR ARERZEL 2 AR S ERE
EAEER _ZT——F+=-A=+—H
BREEA A RK175,800,0007T (ZZ—
— & AR#155,700,0007T) 7 X2
Y ([REBEEME]) BE_ZT—ZF
T A=+—HLFE ZFARAELT
ERAEEEBEABTIUBRRKRESAFR
EITEBEME  UWIHEREE -

BE-_ZT——Ft+-A=+—RHL#F
B BRSEEEHRE BEREER
—E-—F+-A=t+—HNEEAH
WRARRES o

R-_TBE——F+_A=+—H8 x&E
NERBREMEZEEFE - AEEZ
PFREEEBERR-_ZE—Z—-F=HA=1+=
A ZEZEREER  BEZMBA
AR ESREREMECZEER ' &
HEEEWEZHEAEEDNDBERZWEB R
Al RZ_ZE——F/N\A+THEAB - ~&H
BESREREMEZFER -

HE_ET——F+-_FA=+—BItF
B AEBHEURBEAZREMEY
AR #6,294,000c (Z & — —F: A
K #33,735,0007T) 2 & T EWE -
BwREL B AR®E6,610,0007T (ZF
—— % : AR #35016,0007T) ° &7
BE-_E——HS+-_A=+—HLEE
ZIREEHBERPEIREEKELHA
R #316,000 (ZE——F: AR¥
1,281,0007T) °
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. HERMNKE

2012 2011
—E-=F T——%F
RMB’000 RI\/IB 000
AR®T T ARBFT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REB T HFERAES
on land use rights are held under HEFERRIBTIR R E
medium-term leases in the PRC and VAR HAFE 4045 B 1
analysed for reporting purposes as: SITERSEABWOT -
Current assets MENE E 6 6
Non-current assets EMBEE 234 240
240 246
Notes: B 5T
@) On 11 January 2006, the Group obtained a court order from (a) RZZEZEREF—A+—H  ARASE B
the People’s Intermediate Court of Shenzhen to freeze certain ANREEL BB ER &SR EmBRE TR
land of the Group which included prepaid lease payments A ANEEWKE BFRYIFRARERE L 2 AR

(b) As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in the process of (b)

M ERREAREEERNK
F+—-AH

with a carrying value of approximately RMB240,000 at 31
December 2012 (2011: RMB246,000) as a result of certain
litigations against a subsidiary of the Group in relation to (=

HRZ-ZZE—=

=+—HZEEBELHAR®240,0007T
—ET——F : AR¥246,000T) 2 & T i -

certain alleged guarantees and Outstanding Amounts. During BE_TTFA_A=+RAILFE - &
the year ended 31 December 2010, such litigations were BT ERAEEIEEBETARRES

concluded and the Group undergone debt restructurings ITEREE A HREEE -
in the form of issuing convertible bonds to settle the

Outstanding Amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the relevant
seizure had been released and the assets were no longer aE
frozen by the relevant authorities as at 31 December 2011. ‘f’ HINE BRI o

BE_Z——F+_A=1+—"HIFE  A@H
ERERE BARESER —T——F+_-H=

REZE——F+—H=+—B AEE{EHFH

applying for the building ownership certificates of the Freeze
Buildings. A legal opinion provided by the Group’s PRC legal
advisors on 23 March 2012, confirmed that although the
subsidiary has not yet obtained the building ownerships
certificates of the Freeze Buildings, the ownership of the
Freeze Buildings vested with the subsidiary. On 14 August
2012, the Group has obtained the building ownership
certificates of the Freeze Buildings.

REVEIFER - XEE 2 PBUEARERR —
E——F-A - +=—ABLERERE®R - B
@EE%H%’AETW*?%?%}%%%%Z%E% " ORAS
MEZHEEERDBRZMBAR - R_F——F
NA+TEA - AEECERRE %%Z%F-ﬂ <
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT
TESTING ON GOODWILL

«* 7» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

21. BERBEZRERHR

(@) Goodwill (a) BHE
RMB’000
AREFTT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE BA KR REE
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 Rn—E—F—H—H8"
and 31 December 2012 —E——F+-A=+—HK
—F——F#+-A=+—H 184,231

(b) Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to one individual cash generating
unit, the property development segment.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that,
based on the business valuation report of the property
development segment as at 31 December 2012 issued by
Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent professional
valuer not connected to the Group (“Norton”), the
recoverable amount of the property development segment
exceeds its carrying amount in the consolidated statement
of financial position and therefore, no impairment loss is
necessary.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
determined from the income-based approach calculation
as extracted from Norton’s valuation report for the
recoverable amount as at 31 December 2012. The Group
prepared cash flow forecast derived from the most recent
available financial budgets approved by management and
extrapolated over one (2011: two) year. In preparing the
forecasts, management made references to project area
for real estate development. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculation were those regarding discount rates
and anticipated changes to future selling prices, as follows:

o Projected cashflow forecasts are based on development
plans of real estate projects.

o Management used a discount rate which is derived
as the Company's weighted average cost of capital,
representing the expected return on the Company’s
capital, and assigned a discount of 17.44% (2011:
15.95%).

o Future selling prices were estimated with reference
to existing and past selling prices in the real estate
industry in the PRC.

(b) BEEZREAR

URERSSBENME - A EMINEED
RE—EENRECELRLML - MERERDEL -

ARPEFRR BER-_T——F+-A=

+—HAE ;ﬁlmﬂéﬁﬁﬁ A ([E]) (B
EEEZISEIIEE’?EZF*@%%TEEW)Fﬁ%’éﬁ

ZOFERRDBARTERE - DEBRD B
ZAWE S EESRNERGAMEMRAR ZEE

B - FtEAELRERSE -
ReELBM oAl E B RHEE E 2 —

E——H+ - A=t+—HZAKROEBZHEE
BREABARELETAGFEER - AKEZRS
TR IRIBRIIEEIE B E RRIBBE —F
—T——FWF) cHMBAEEFNRE
i 5‘*%5‘55\‘5%1 CEEEREREFERR M
cERMEEFEIEZERR/NU NABNINE
Eﬁﬁ?ﬂfﬁﬂi?}ifﬁ’éﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁuﬁ%ﬁ :

BAENREREIERNEEEE N
E&tal -

e PEHEBEMFEA —ERIRMNEFHER
AR (ERARREARNTEEIR) FTHT
AR R BIEETNE17.44% (=
T——% :1595%) o

o RERHEBRBETEEMEDISER
FBEMHEERGSR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

22. AEHEERE
AHHEREOE

2012 2011

—E-—fF —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost KA 2 3E E i 25 38 55 51,338 51,338
Less: impairment loss recognised B BERERREEE (51,338) (51,338)

(a) The available-for-sale investments are measured at
cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period as the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so wide that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

(b) Available-for-sale  investments amounting to
approximately RMB51,338,000 (2011: RMB51,338,000)
represents the Group’s 18.52% unlisted equity
interest in the registered capital of Goldwiz Huarui
(Tongling) Electronic Material Company Limited* (H
EIG(ERZ)E F M EHE R A R), a company incorporated
in the PRC, the operation of which has been
suspended since December 2005 due to critical
liquidity problem. Accordingly, the investment cost
had been fully impaired in previous years. Up to the
end of the reporting period, there is no change as
to the status of the investment.

(@) REBEBZAHEEREZFAEN AR
NBAKRKNRERERE AR GHE
MEEAAENZERAN  ARAE
ERR/REALBEHUREAE -

(b) ‘H,\Hj%&éii%ﬁ%@z%}\ﬁﬁfﬁ
51,338,000t (Z & — —F: ARK
51,338,0007T) R AEEFATE 2 — R+
BlEfMIELET AR BigEERy (AE) B
FTMHEBRARNGZEMER218.52%3F
Lﬁ%¥’aAﬂliﬁm@§iﬁ%
BER-_ZEERF T+ AKX EE-
-JH: RERABEEZHENPNUAAEFEEER
,mﬁ BEEHAR  BERRALELM

* The English name is for identification purpose only. * BN BB EEZT
23. INVENTORIES 23. #H
2012 2011
—B-—F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
Merchandise T 3,174 3,540

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain
impaired inventories were sold at profit. As a result, a
reversal of impairment of inventories of approximately
RMB464,000 (2011: RMB58,000) has been recognised and
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2012.

B2 _2——F+_-_A=+—BLtFE &F
EREZFEEELIHEEF - Al HE
ZRERRE 4 AR KA464,0007T (_?——E

AR®58,000T) EEREEBRRBEEHE_Z
——F+=—A=+— Emirzixm%ﬁuﬁzﬁﬁ

RA o
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RE N BHRME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE
24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24. EEWE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARBFT
At the beginning of the year NG 971,642 737,095
Additions NE 268,474 216,706
Interest capitalised (Note 11) BEAREF B (FEE11) 3,881 17,841
Transfer to properties held RETREREFEME
for sale upon completion (1,243,997) -
At the end of the year RE & = 971,642
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Represented by: K&
Land use rights + fth{sF FH#E = 337,558
Construction costs and capitalised expenditure &K AN K2 & A L F X - 634,084
- 971,642

The carrying amounts of the properties under development URFEREE LM F 2 EEYEREEW

situated on the leasehold land in the PRC are as follows: o
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Medium-term lease R BR AR 249 = 209,861
Long-term lease RHEIMA 4 = 761,781
- 971,642

Properties under development are classified as current
asset as the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete in the normal
operating cycle. As at 31 December 2011, no properties
under development are expected not to be realised within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

HRARERMERREAR 22 EHETA—
R EAYTK  AHERYMEEDBARY
BE R-ZT——F+=-A=+—8 BHL
EEEYRSNHERRERE T —EAREHE -

China Uptown Group Company Limited R & B AR A F Annual Report 2012 &3



e MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

25. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for sale are situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at cost or
net realisable value.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain
impaired properties held for sale were sold at profit. As a
result, a reversal of impairment loss in respect of properties
held for sale of approximately RMB1,577,000 (2011:
RMB6,904,000) has been recognised and included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, properties held for sale to the
amount of approximately RMB42,902,000 (2011:
RMB45,691,000) is stated at net realisable value.

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. SEYE

AEBEZHFEMEACNTE - IEFEWE
AR AT FEZT

BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILEE &F
EREFEVXEELLESESN - At - &F
EMEZRERBERRBHARE577,0007T
(ZZE——%F : AR¥6,904,00070) EHER K
Bt ABEZE-_TE——F+-_A=+—HILFE
ZEABEERERNA o

RZE—ZF+_A=1+—"H  BHEHAHA
R #42,902,000c (Z T — —F: AR
45,691,0007T) MEE Y 1L n] &R FE5ER -

26. EFREMEWERT

2012 2011

—E2-=-F —F——F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBFIT

Trade receivables Z 5 FEWER X 12,015 29,429
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERBEER (5.172) (5,187)
6,843 24,242

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNR - meR

H i e Y Bk 3K 14,330 40,733
Less: impairment loss recognised B BERERREEE (2,567) (2,575)
11,763 38,158

18,606 62,400

Customers from the trading segment are normally required
to settle the debts within one to two months upon issue
of invoices, except for certain well established customers
where the terms are extended to two to three months.

Trade receivables from rental income are due for settlement
in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements
entered into with the tenants.

Trade receivables from the sale of properties are received
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and
purchase agreement. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

KABSHBRIEFPKEIEEE —REE—
EHEAEEEY B TEFERYRFHE
ZEFAEREME=MA -

RS WA 2B 5 R B 3Ty 88 S 2T
2 BB 2 ERR B R A o

KELEWMEZEZRKRFIIIRIAEE B
RN - RN FEESR  AKRELER
B EAEA R
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of impairment loss recognised
presented based on invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates.

7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

26 EFREMERIIRR (&)

(@ UNUTFRRBEEREZES (BIsBA
R EH) 25 28 5B ERR (kR
EERBEREE) ZREDH

2012 2011

—g-=f -

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Within 60 days 60K IAN 6,843 23,423
Over 365 days HBiE365K - 819
6,843 24,242

Included in the Group’s trade receivable as at 31
December 2011 was an amount of approximately
RMB16,700,000 (2012: Nil) derived from the sale
of properties. In accordance with the terms of the
sales and purchase agreement, this receivable is
repayable by installment.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB819,000 as at 31 December
2011 (2012: Nil) which were past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group had not
provided for impairment loss. Trade receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

W—%ff¢+—ﬂz+fav$%3

B RWERRBIENARE16,700,000
m(_;—_i-ﬁ>f§%%%¥ma
HoRIBEEEMREGK - ZEWRKIERE
DEASAT o

by NZBE——F+-_A=+—80  &x&£H
ZORWBRAEHREEREATEOAR
#819,0007T (ZE——4F : &) EI
FIE - ZRrERFEBHEAaE  mA
EEVESE(ERREBERE kB8
HEERECESRIEREREZEF
B HEAMROZHERES -

BB HERREZ B 5 R WARR 2 iRk

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETT

Over 365 days HBiB365K - 819
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The movements in impairment losses recognised in

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE
26. EZRHEMEBBWERR (&)

(0 REZERUIRFMER ZBERBEZSH N

respect of trade receivables are as follows: N

2012 2011

—E——F —F—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
At beginning of the year hNC) 5,187 5,678
Exchange realignment ME 5 =58 (46) (223)
Written off during the year JiINGEINE i - (317)
Recognised during the year RERNTER 31 49
At end of the year REF 45 5,172 5,187
At 31 December 2012, included in the impairment R-ZE——F+=_A=+—8 " AR

loss are individually impaired trade receivables
with an aggregate balance of approximately

EEEZENEREE S EIKERRE
WEEEA) B AR ¥ES5,172,000T (ZF

RMB5,172,000 (2011: RMB5,187,000) which are F: AR#¥5,187,0007T) * % B 5 E W
due to long outstanding. BE I EHRSE °
(d)  The movements in impairment losses recognised in (d) FEMEKERAEDERAZBEEEEZE
respect of other receivables are as follows: mr
2012 2011
—B-CfF %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
At beginning of the year RF ) 2,575 1,594
Exchange realignment ME H =8 (€] (19)
Recognised during the year REAER - 1,000
At end of the year R 4L 2,567 2,575
At 31 December 2012, included in the impairment RZE——F+_-_A=+—H " st AR
loss are individually impaired other receivables BB 18 2 85l B R E H & U BR R 2 &8
with an aggregate balance of approximately MBTELH B ARK2,567,000T (=%
RMB2,567,000 (2011: RMB2,575,000) which are — % : AR #2,575,0007T) - Eiﬁﬁﬂf@é
due to long outstanding. BRI REIRIBE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

27. REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT PAID FOR A
POSSIBLE ACQUISITION

On 5 December 2012, the Group entered into a
non-legally binding letter of intent with an independent
third party (the “Potential Vendor”), in relation to a
possible acquisition (the “Possible Acquisition”) from
the Potential Vendor of 70% equity interest in a target
company (the “Target Company”) which is principally
engaged in property development. The Target Company
currently owns a piece of land in Shenzhen, the PRC which
is not yet developed.

According to the letter of intent, the final consideration
of the Possible Acquisition will be subject to the valuation
by a professional valuer to be engaged by the Group. A
refundable cash deposit of RMB150,000,000 had been
paid by the Group to the Potential Vendor in December
2012. Details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 5 December 2012.

The deposit is classified as current asset as the amount
will be refunded to the Group within ten days if no formal
sales and purchase agreement to be signed on or before
15 April 2013.

28. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments comprise:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

27. AREWBEEZENARERE

RZEBE——F+_ARB AEBE—-LIF
F=F(BEEFR]) RBEBRELEEF 7 8
WE—RBEEZEAR (TBEERRARF]) 270%K #
([FTREEE IR ) Al — M EARYORNZE
mME - BREAREERE —RBUAFERIA
EENGE: P

RIBERZE  AJRlBEEE RKRREBER
SEBTEREEEGEMMAETZHEES A
BB - AEBBR - T——F+_AREBELES
H 4 E A AR 150,000,0007T 2 Al R ElR
o HFBHN ARG ARHAE-_ZT——F+_A
FHZRAE °

R - FE—=FHA+H AR AL ERFIE
XNEEHZ ARFESRIOEAREARE
B ARREEDB/RDEE °

28. BEEZIHPARKRE
BAEZIMAKRENT

2012 2011

—E-—C—F —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R AR¥ETTT

Trust fund investments EEESKE 150,704 150,704
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRERBEER (150,704) (150,704)

Trust fund investments represented funds placed by two
PRC subsidiaries with Kinghing Trust & Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (S5 FEIRERKB BRAR]) (the “Trust Company”),
an independent trust investment company in the PRC.
Pursuant to the relevant contracts, the funds were for a
fixed term up to May 2006 and the Group's return on the
trust funds is limited to an annual rate of return of 4%.

ERESKRETREBRANEB QKA E—MH
HREEEREERERMERAR ([EEAFR])
ZBYERERERRIKHBCES: - BIEEH
B8 ZESRETEHRES YR
FRAER  AREARZERLESCISHME
WEEATFL% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

In early 2006, the Company was informed that the Trust
Company has been ordered by the relevant authority to
suspend its operation. The assets of the Trust Company
are now being managed by the China Construction Bank.
The two PRC subsidiaries have registered with the China
Construction Bank its entitlement to the fund. Despite
the Group's repeated attempts for confirmation of the
repayment schedule, neither the China Construction Bank
nor the local government has provided any information.
In view of the absence of sufficient information to
substantiate the recoverability of the trust fund, as at
30 June 2006, the directors of the Company consider
to recognise an impairment loss of approximately
RMB150,704,000 on trust fund investments. Up to the
end of the reporting period, there is no change as to the
status of the investment.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

29. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held-for-trading investments comprise:

28. FEZEIHARKRE £&)

RIZBERFY > ARARERANZERLARAD
WEBRBHSEILER  HEENEHFTH
BRIBITEE - ZMERAKNEBRRE A+ E
BRIBTTERZES ZERE - FAXERT
HHENGREENBERNERS  HRED
REFIFBREZIFITHE BT RETME
BeARRLDEHNEREBEEZ ETES 2K
B RZZTEERNFAA=Z+H ARFESF
ERBEERERNZETESREBRR/H
#) AR #150,704,000C R BE 18 - H = 4
B ®EMRRIW EEREES -

* B A BEHRES

29. BERZABRZRE
BIEXSRBZBEMT -

2012 2011
—EF--F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARKETTT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BERELTMERESFAAE
at fair value 53 219

The above financial assets are classified as held-for-trading.
The fair values of these financial assets are based on
quoted market prices.

NEHHEEEEDBRRRZMBAE  ZEH
BEEZAABDERTISRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—Z

30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

The restricted bank deposits are represented by the
guarantee deposit for construction of projects. In
accordance with relevant documents issued by the PRC
local Stated-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, the
Group’s property development is required to place the
proceeds received from pre-sale of properties as guarantee
deposits for construction of properties. The deposits can
only be used to pay for construction fees and purchase
costs or expenses incurred in the relevant projects when
approvals are obtained from the PRC local Stated-Owned
Land and Resource Bureau. The restriction will be released
after the construction is completed or estate ownership
certificate of the pre-sold properties is issued, whichever is
earlier.

Restricted bank deposits carried interest at floating daily
bank deposits rate.

On 23 November 2012, the estate ownership certificate
was issued to the Group and the restriction has been
released on 26 December 2012.

31. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carried interest at market rate which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.50% (2011: 0.01% to 0.50%) per
annum.

«* 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

30. RRHIMITER

ERHRITEFRIEELETIRIRIBES - RIE
TEMSTERAELMEREERBMH HEX
(R ZSEIZ%%%*J?\%ZE\HQE%%PH%?K
BEREEENRERS - RiBTE 5 H
B EREEBOIER E%Tziﬁéﬂﬁﬁ{’ﬁ
XNEHEBENREERRIRBR AR
ERHSNEEIREENXBLBEEDEF
EEE (UABRFERE) &Mk -

BRHRTEFIRFZE <8 B RITHEKF X5

B o
i

RZE—ZF+—A=Z+=H rxEBEESF

WE#E  BZRIR_Z——F+=-_A=+
/\Eﬁﬂgﬁ?

31. RITEEREBEE

RITEFREENF0.01%20.50% (=T —
—%F : 0.01%%E0.50%) ZMHFRFE o

China Uptown Group Company Limited R & B AR A F Annual Report 2012 &3



-

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. EZREMENKIEA

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Trade payables JERTE 5 FR 41,335 26,288
Receipts in advance (Note iii) TEMER (K &Eiii) 482,217 883,572
Accrued expenses and other payables JE A~ 7 =2 Ko EL At FE AT BR 3K 18,314 9,782
541,866 919,642

(i) The Group normally receives credit period from
suppliers ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within

the credit timeframe.

(ii) An aged analysis of the trade payables at the end

() AEB—RKRIEEEORIKEEAIK
B0k - AEEECEVYVERAKRE
BR mMRAEEMEZINEEHRE

f o

(iy MEBEBZEZENERFILERAHK

of the reporting period based on invoice date is as BT
follows:

2012 2011
—E-——fF %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Within 60 days 60K AN 40,904 25,447
61 - 90 days 61290K 60 -
91 - 365 days 912 365K 5 =
Over 365 days EBiE365K 366 841
41,335 26,288

(i) Receipts in advance represents sales proceeds
received from buyers in connection with the Group’s
pre-sale of properties at the end of the reporting

period.

(i) BURFEAEERNMEEZDEEE

A B R WER 2 TR & FT 1S 3K
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

33. BEHABRITER

2012 2011
—E—CfF —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARETTT
Carrying amounts repayable*: FERTRAREE™ ¢
On demand or within one year BB —FR 5,986 90,887
Carrying amount of bank borrowings FERAE B AR ST — S AREE
that are not repayable within one year EEBAGIIRERESR
from the end of the reporting period &R IRITERERE A
but contain a repayment on demand clause (RREBBEHETEZ5)
(shown under current liabilities) 7,212 8,470
13,198 99,357
Less: amounts due within one year shown B R—F 2 NEH
under current liabilities mENBE (13,198) (99,357)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

RIERBRAER NIRERR S -

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

The secured bank borrowings carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rate. The effective interest rates
of the secured bank borrowings at 31 December 2012
ranged from 2.03% to 7.94% (2011: 1.86% to 7.94%)
per annum.

At 31 December 2012, the borrowings are secured against
the Group’s leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties and properties under development with
carrying values of approximately RMB17,329,000 (2011:
RMB17,917,000), nil (2011: RMB6,325,000) and nil (2011:
RMB971,642,000) respectively.

* B REIRE KGR EE RN A MmERE

ZEBMIBITERIETE B XL - HIFRTT
BERR-E——F+-_A=+—HB2EBREF
RN F203%FE7.94% (T ——F : 1.86%
%£7.94%) °

RZZBE——F+-_A=+—08  EFJIUAKE
BEEEmED DN AEARK17,329,000T (ZF
——%F : AR#17,917,0007T) * & (ZFT——
F: AR%6,325,00000) ME (ZZE——F :
AR#971,642,0000T) 2HELHNIEF &
BYERIEZYEERT o

China Uptown Group Company Limited R & B AR A F Annual Report 2012 &3



-

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 34. AARES
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Convertible bonds issued by the Company: RRNFEITZ AR ES
At beginning of the year REFE] 311,260 184,391
Issue of convertible bonds during the year FARBITABRRES — 186,093
Change in fair value of convertible bonds MR EF 2 AR EE 4,139 (45,393)
Exchange realignment PE W =58 (3,212) (13,831)
At the end of the year R4 312,187 311,260
The following in an analysis of convertible bonds for &R E R MiRES ST T -
reporting purposes:
CBI CBII 2012 CB I CB Il 2011
EIE: GIEY ARk IRl
&5 BHN —FT—-F &5 &5l —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTRT ARETR AREBETT AREBTT ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FRBAEE - 179,782 179,782 142,428 168,832 311,260
Current liabilities mEEE 132,405 - 132,405 ~ - —
132,405 179,782 312,187 142,428 168,832 311,260

Convertible bonds are designated at fair value through

profit or loss.

IR EHIO I BIR AL EiT A -
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 1 December 2010 (“Issue Date 1”), the Company
issued CB | in principal amount of HK$160,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB136,000,000) to
the Subscriber. The net proceeds from the issue of
the CB | were used to settle the entire outstanding
amount due to the Bank. The CB | is secured
by a guarantee, the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings and investment property with carrying
values of approximately RMB11,658,000 (2011: Nil)
and RMB175,800,000 (2011: Nil) respectively and
share charge over Usualink Development Limited
("Usualink”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The CB | entitle the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time on or after three months from the Issue Date
| up to ten business days prior to 30 November
2013 (the “Settlement Date |”) in multiples of
HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,250,000) at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.59 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.50)
(subject to adjustments) per conversion share. If the
CB | has not been converted, they will be redeemed
on the Settlement Date | at par. Interest of 4%
per annum will be paid semi-annually up until the
Settlement Date |.

Pursuant to the CB | subscription agreement, the
conversion price of the CB | shall be adjusted on
each of the first and second anniversaries of the
Issue Date | if the volume weighted average price
of the shares over the preceding calendar month is
less than 85% of the applicable conversion price.
The new conversion price will then be adjusted
to a price equal to 85% of the conversion price
immediately before the adjustment.

The fair value of the CB | at 31 December 2012
and 2011 is approximately HK$164,970,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB132,405,000)
and approximately HK$175,640,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB142,428,000) respectively,
which is determined taking into account a valuation
carried out by Vigers using the binomial model.

< 7» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——F+_A=+—HLHFE

34.

(a)

AR ES (@)

BA_T*fiﬂL:ﬂ*El(fé‘
HHI KXRQRAEETKEE *ﬁ%
160,000,0007T (#H & ® 4 )\ E e

136,000,0007T) 2 A] 2 f% (& &1 F R &
A o BITRAI R EHI 2 FTiS B F 5

REMEMBITZE2EHAREERIE - 7]
BIREFITIAER  ASEEREEED
Al A% AR #11,658,0000 (ZF ——
F|E) & AR¥175,800,000T (==
——F : 8#) JHEL W REFNIEEY
¥EEEF UEROBLTARAEZE
MEBAR@EBERAER AR ([@E]) -

ARREHFIRERAE AR ETTBHIRET
—@AskzEEzE—_T—=%+—HA=+
B (B8] BT+ E% % B8 Bk
B 1% AT 2 % (E % 1% 78 #5,000,0007T (48
LN AR%4,250,0007T) 2 EHE K
AANNREEL  VIRBRE A FRE
IR 1D B ¥0.597T (FHER D ARK0.50

7)) (AT TR o fin AT HRARE 75 (R R
# E'JH%EASEHEIHHI?EETETE@ FF4
BZME#EFFFIRN —REXM B H
_IJ: o

REABREREFRERZ  WRONE

ﬁ&%:ﬁﬂiZagﬂz&QEM%
FHELRERRRE285% @ B #
EEFBREANETERIzg@NRSE
“EAEFAE - ERESHAREE
EREMFEFHEAIRARESS % 2B °

RZE——F+-_A=+—BKk=%
—— 4+ _A=+—BBREFIZ
N ARE D B4 & B #164,970,0007T
(HMERH A R ¥132,405,000) &
7 #175,640,000T (BHEER D AR
142,428,0007T) + E JH#&=E BB B 7
RA-IEENETZHEMEE °
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 34, WRIRES (&)
(@)  (Continued) (@) (#&)
The fair value of the CB | at the end of the reporting REIE BRI RRESFIC AR BEIRTIE
period was calculated using the market value basis. EEFE -FAEAIAREFRRANTIESR
Major parameters adopted in the calculation of the EHEAT
fair value are summarised below:
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E——fF —T—F
t=A=+—H +-A=1+—H
Share price A AD (B 18 HK$0.50 HK$0.54
7B ¥#0.50T FE¥0.547T
Conversion price B HK$0.59 HK$0.59
7 #£0.597T VE#0.597T
Expected volatility (Note i) TEER R e (BaEi) a47% 48%
Expected life (Note ii) TEHRA SHR (BN 11 months 23 months
111848 231@A
Risk-free rate (Note iii) fm = B bE R (PR 0.08% 0.34%
Expected dividend yield (Note iv) TR EE (HI5Eiv) 0% 0%
Notes: PiaE
i) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical (i) TEHR R iR BB AT E AR R RN ER 2B LR IRE

(iv)

volatility of the Company’s share price.

Expected life was the expected remaining life of the option.
The risk-free rate is determined by reference to the yield of
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to

the life of the CB I.

The expected dividend yield was based on the historical
dividend payment record of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 1 March 2011 (“Issue Date 1I”), the Company
issued convertible bonds (“CB II”) in the principal
amount of HK$230,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB191,112,000) at zero coupon
rate to Seaton Limited (“Seaton”), a connected
party of the Group, for the settlement of the
consideration payable to Seaton in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Armando Investments Limited (“Armando”) during
the year ended 31 December 2011. Armando
is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands which holds 25% equity interest in Zhuhai
Zhongzhu. Following the acquisition, the Group
holds 75% equity interest in Zhuhai Zhongzhu.

CB Il holders are entitled to convert CB Il into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time on
or after three months from the Issue Date Il up to
ten business days prior to 28 February 2014 (the
“Settlement Date I1”) in multiples of HK$5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,150,000) at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.8115 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.674) (subject to adjustments)
per conversion share. If CB Il has not been converted,
they will be redeemed on Settlement Date Il at par.

Pursuant to the CB Il subscription agreement,
90% of the applicable conversion price of the
CB Il shall be adjusted on each of the first and
second anniversaries of the Issue Date Il if the
volume weighted average price of the shares over
the preceding 30 days is less than 85% of the
applicable conversion price.

The Company may at any time after 12 months of
the Issue Date Il and before the Settlement Date |l
with prior notice to the bondholder(s) redeem all,
but not some only, of the CB Il at 110% of the
outstanding principal amount of the CB II.

On 1 March 2012, the conversion price in force of the
2011 CB Il has been reset to HK$0.73035 (equivalent
to approximately RMB0.5929) per conversion share
as the volume weighted average of the closing prices
of the shares over the preceding 30 trading days
of the first anniversary of the date of issue of the
CB Il is less than 85% of the conversion price, the
original conversion price of HK$0.8115 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.674) will be adjusted to be
equivalent to 90% of the then applicable conversion
price. The details are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 March 2012.

34.
(b)

AR ES (@)

R—_ZE——F=ZAF—B(%17BEH
) AR UNEEBBRITAERES
#230,000,0007T (1 & R & A R ¥
191,112,0007T) 2 AR &2 ([ AT R
BHN]) FTREERAR (TKE] &~&
BzBEEAL) WEERBE_ZT——
F+-A=+—HItFERKEArmando
Investments Limited ([Armando]) 2
EHEBTRAMENKE Z2RKE -
Armandos — RN EB R X E ST MK
Y2ZzRaa EEBIREHP K Z225%K
o RNKERE  AEEBREKRESRIKZ
75% & HE ©

AR E I A A B R 1T B BEe
FA=EAzRE-_E—ME_/A -+
J\B (IZ+F B HI) AT+ & & % B 85 &
K& B 15 ] #2 1% 1 251132 7% #£5,000,0007C
(HBERHARKAL,150,0007T) 2 EHE
BAERNQR LB  VRERELSSR
BN EH0.81157C (HERHARKE
0.67470) (A] TFAE) o M) BMRBEFHIR
FaE o AR B EEER -

BB ESIREDRZ  WRORE
& &% 38 — @88 F 2 AI30K 2 K X 2 hitE
FHEILRERRIRE Z285% + Al #
IR EHNE B R(E 2 90% BN 17 B H
2 & fE &5 — ERF A -

AN A AT FAEE 1T B HAIRE 1 218 A 18 M 2+t
HEIRBER SRS RBAESFAEAM
LA EHIE AN AEEZ110%
B 230 (M3EEEIMH) AIRRES -

R-_ZTE——F=A—H8 BRRHRVA
BREFIBTEHZ HEBFAZ0ER
SHZERRENEFHKTE LR
8 285% * R (E H #¥0.81157T (48
ERNNARK0.6747T) W ARERE
REBBRRKEZ90%  W_-_T——F7]
BIREAI 2 BRED EHRTE ASERGE
% A% 17 75 #0.730357C (BBERH AR
0.59297T) - BEAFBEHINNR AL F B
AEZE—_—F=HAtBHZR % -
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——f+-A=t—HLEE

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 34. WRIRES (&)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (#&)
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, “HE RZE—=F=H—H A
on 1 March 2013, the conversion price in force E/\HXT RAEBmRESIZEITHE 22 =
of the 2011 CB Il has been reset to HK$0.657315 fliﬂiﬁl 30fARR % B 2 2 8 Ntk ¥ 15
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.5267) WmELRIRREZ85%  MREBK
per conversion share as the volume weighted 0.730357T (18 R 4 A K #0.59297T)
average of the closing prices of the shares over BHE— T HABRERERERRREZ
the preceding 30 trading days of the second 90% WM_T——FrABKREHFIZEAE
anniversary of the date of issue of the CB Il is less IR B E B R E R TRILARRN B
than 85% of the conversion price, the conversion %0.6573157C (HEF R X A K #0.5267
price of HK$0.73035 (equivalent to approximately JC) c BERAFBHEHIINAARBHA=-ZT
RMB0.5929) will be further adjusted to be *:E:HEEZA% °
equivalent to 90% of the then applicable conversion
price. The details are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 March 2013.
The fair value of the CB Il at 31 December 2012 RZE-—ZF+A=+—BKk=%
and 2011 is approximately HK$224,000,000 ——F+ A=+ —HBABRKREFIZ
(equivalent to approximately RMB179,782,000) N ED R # A B E224,000,0007T
and approximately HK$208,200,000 (equivalent (HERHOAERE E34%179,782 0007T) K&
to approximately RMB168,832,000) respectively, 75 #208,200,0007T (IHE R A R K
which is determined taking into account a valuation 168,832, OOOTE) HTJW%‘J@WT Hf 7
carried out by Vigers, using the binomial model. A EERET Y GEmERE -
The fair value of the CB Il at the end of the E’\%TTH&HH“DHTT‘%HXTI%‘IIZ N {E
reporting period was calculated using the market TR EREENE HARBERERA
value basis. Major parameters adopted in the E’\JIE%%&TEHEZZHT
calculation of the fair value are summarised below:
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—EB-——F —ET——F
+t=A=t—-B +-A=t+—H
Share price AR B HK$0.50 HK$0.54
7#£0.507T VE#60.547T
Conversion price B HK$0.7304 HK$0.8115
7#0.7304 T 7E#0.81157T
Expected volatility (Note i) TEERR R (B 5ED) 41% 47%
Expected life (Note ii) TEERA R (B &Eii) 14 months 26 months
1418 A 261E A
Risk-free rate (Note iii) o 2 ttT ( Bff =i ) 0.094% 0.377%
Expected dividend yield (Note iv) RS = (Ff i) 0% 0%

Notes:

()

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price.

Expected life was the expected remaining life of the option.
The risk-free rate is determined by reference to the yield of
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to
the life of the CB II.

The expected dividend yield was based on the historical
dividend payment record of the Company.

(i) TR iR BT B AR AR D (B 2 LK IR
T o

() TEEERER AR S T -
i) I SR T3 2 B A R (I L AR 4
L ar e

(iv) TEHIRBWERREANRIBERKECHKET -
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35. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 35. ENKE
2012 2011
—EB-——F —EF——14F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BosE AR%T R ARETT

At the beginning of the year REH] 44,645 55,133
Exchange realignment MEH A 5E (482) (2,340)
Early settlement Il REEEI (iv) - (19,651)
Discount received on early settlement  FLIRFEZWELZHTH (i), (iv) - (982)
Imputed interest expense charged FRMBMERNEZH

during the year (Note 11) (BHzE11) 4,652 18,491
Gain on extinguishment of EIEENREZ KR

consideration payable (v) = (6,006)
At the end of the year R4 48,815 44,645
Analysed for reporting purposes as: SRS A B RO

Current liabilities mEAaE 48,815 =

Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 44,645

48,815 44 645

Notes: B 5T
(i) The amounts represented the deferred payment in relation (i) ZEeHEABHA_TEINF T —ANEERIZRE

to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Boom Lotus
Holding Limited, and its subsidiaries, Pine Global Holdings
Limited and Zhongzhu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. in

November 2009.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated
11 August 2009, the consideration of HK$343,200,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB302,016,000) (“Cash
Consideration”) was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
originally were payable by the Group on or before 19

November 2011.

BARREKBANETREERAARKET
HEMEREARARL 2 M TRAZITE
LEE

BRERAPE-_ZTZZAFNAT+—BZEEH
0 B #343,200,000T (B ER B AR
302,016,00070) 2 R{E ([BHE&KE]) BIEE
R ZFERRANERRNEER T —F+—
B+hBsZai -
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CONSIDERATION PAYABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

On 4 January 2010, the Group and the vendor of Boom
Lotus Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”), a subsidiary acquired
by the Group in 2009, entered into a supplementary
agreement. Pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to provide
a cash discount of approximately HK$7,158,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB6,299,000) (“Cash Discount”) to
the Group for the early settlement of HK$136,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB119,680,000) of the Cash
Consideration (“Early Settlement |").

The Early Settlement | was settled by way of the followings:

(a) On 4 January 2010, as requested by the Vendor, the
Group, the Vendor and the purchaser of Hill Light (the
“Buyer”) entered into an agreement, in which the
Buyer agree to settle the Consideration Receivables
of HK$126,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB110,880,000) directly to the Vendor, the
settlement has been completed on 14 January 2010.

(b) On 4 January 2010, the Group has agreed to
settle HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB8,800,000) of the Cash Consideration to the Vendor.

Besides of the arrangement of Early Settlement I, the
Group and the Vendor entered into several supplementary
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2010,
pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to provide a further
total cash discount of approximately HK$5,407,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,704,000) to the Group
for the early settlement of HK$108,136,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB94,079,000) of the remaining Cash
Consideration (“Early Settlement II”).

On 10 March 2011, the Group and the Vendor entered into
a supplementary agreement that Vendor agreed to provide
a cash discount of approximately HK$1,183,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB982,000) to the Group for early
settlement of HK$23,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB19,651,000) of the remaining Cash Consideration (“Early
Settlement II1").

On 18 November 2011, the Group and the Vendor entered
into a supplementary agreement to extend the repayment
period for 15 months from 20 November 2011 to 20
February 2013 for the remaining Cash Consideration of
approximately HK$61,666,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB51,240,000) on 19 November 2011 with nominal
interest of 2.5% per annum.

Upon the extension of the repayment period of the
consideration payable, the fair value of the consideration
reduced to approximately HK$54,439,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB45,234,000), leading to a gain on
extinguishment of consideration payable of approximately
HK$7,227,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB6,006,000)
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The effective interest rate of the consideration payable is
12.6% (2011: 12.6%) per annum.

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, on 20 February 2013,
a third supplementary agreement had been entered into
between the Group and the Vendor for a further extension
of the payment date of the remaining amount for a period of
nine months from 21 February 2013 to 20 November 2013.
No interest is to be charged during the extension period.

=
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

36. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each

36. EERRA
BREW0.I10TZEBEBR

Equivalent to
Number of HER
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
RE BT AR¥TR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 W_FE——%—A—8"
and 31 December 2012 “E——%+-A=+—-8k
—F-——#+-A=1+—-H 3,000,000,000 300,000 281,070
Issued and fully paid: BOREHRRA :
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 RZT——F—-H—-HK
—T——%+-A=+—H 851,980,000 85,198 81,232
Conversion of convertible redeemable B R ER T B LR
preference shares (Note) (FE) 78,947,368 7,894 6,346
Conversion of convertible redeemable iR EEE AR
preference A shares (Note) (F3E) 10,526,315 1,053 846
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F#+-A=+—H 941,453,683 94,145 88,424

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2012, approximately 78,947,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued upon the conversion of
the convertible redeemable preference shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.38 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.3055) per share.
In addition, approximately 10,526,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each were issued upon the conversion of the convertible redeemable
preference A shares of HK$0.38 (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.3055) per share. These shares rank pari passu with other shares

e

BesE37 °

in issue in all respects. Details of which are set out in Note 37.
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BEZ——49+-_A=1+—HIFE  RBRKRES
A& 78 #0.387T (SR A AR 0.30557T) B A] 8 i
Al fE B8 S % 18 3517 4978,947, 000/ B A% B #50.107T 2
LBAZ o AN - RIZRREERRE0.387T (FHHER L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES

37. WEBRTEEELKR

BOIREF R A EBAERE T

Convertible redeemable preference shares, issued and fully

paid:
Number of shares Amount
BRE ot}
2012 2011 2012 2011
2 —2—%F B —T—F
Notes ‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BisE Fi& T AREFTRT ARETIT
At beginning of the year REA] 460,000 460,000 184,653 184,653
Conversion of convertible CERAI ol )
redeemable preference shares BER (d) (75,000) = (28,806) =
Conversion of convertible B4 ] 824 1] BB [0]
redeemable preference A shares B AR (d) (10,000) = (3,841) =
At end of the year NG 375000 460,000 152,006 184,653
Represented by: H @ -
Convertible redeemable n] 2 ] BE [0l 8 St I%
preference shares 275,000 350,000 113,600 142,406
Convertible redeemable 0] & ] BE Ol 8 ST APY
preference A shares 100,000 110,000 38,406 42,247
375,000 460,000 152,006 184,653

Notes:

As a result of completion of the issue of the CB I, the conversion price
of the convertible redeemable preference shares and the convertible
redeemable preference A shares of the Company will be adjusted
from HK$0.40 to HK$0.38 with effect from 1 December 2010.

(a) On 29 June 2006, the Company issued 250,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares of par value of
HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$0.40 each for cash. In
April 2007, the Company exercised the option to require the
subscriber to further subscribe for an additional 100,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares at HK$0.40 each
pursuant to the relevant agreement. On 22 June 2007, the
Company issued these 100,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares of par value of HK$0.10 at a subscription
price of HK$0.40 each for cash.

(b) On 29 December 2006, the Company issued 110,000,000
convertible redeemable preference A shares of par value of
HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$0.40 each in respect
of the acquisition of a subsidiary.

All the above convertible redeemable preference shares can be
converted into ordinary shares at HK$0.38 (2011: HK$0.38) per share.
The major terms of the above-mentioned preference shares are set
out below:

CEX

RAT ARG FIZE TR A - AR B A SR A B8 B8 £ iR
Ko AT 82 44 0] B B8 S ARR 2 #2 IR (B S R B 150,40 T A &
K0 38T B E—TE+— — BB o

(a) R-BTRENA-TIE  ARFRKEEIRE
IR R (E & IE 80,407 3 17250,000,000
A& R ES#0.1070,2 A &2 A] iE BB L A% -
RZZEZELFNA - AR REBEEBHETE
R BRAEAANGRBE0L0TTEINRE
100,000,000/ AJ M AT EEE LK - RZEZE
+tERNAZT+ =8 ARRANKEREHRIZE
&% 75 #0.40 T B FR B (& 22 1754 100,000,0000% &
FRE B 0.10 0,2 AT & A A] fE B8 T X -

(b) RZBEERE+_A=-+hNB X2FFHKE
— B AR MiRREE SR B.0.40TEEST
110,000,0000% & f% FI{E & #60. 1070 2 A &3 A]
fE DB JC AR o

b 3t 7 8 42 O (4 2 R 39 R BB 0,38 5T
(T ——& : B%0387) BBLAEAR - 5H.LLE
SR EE ERIIBMT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &=

37. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

0]

(ii)

China Uptown Group Company Limited R & B AR A F Annual Report 2012 &3

For the convertible redeemable preference shares
issued on 29 June 2006 and 22 June 2007, the
preference share holders (the “Preference Share
Holders”) has the right, exercisable at any time
from the date of issue to 15 June 2009 and 7 June
2010 respectively (the dates being the 10 business
days before the third anniversary of the respective
dates of initial issue of the convertible redeemable
preference shares) (“Conversion Period”), to convert
the preference shares into fully paid ordinary shares.
The Company has the right, exercisable following
the end of the conversion period and up to the
third anniversary of the date of the initial issue of
the preference shares, to redeem all or part of the
preference shares or to request the subscriber to
convert all or part of preference shares into fully paid
ordinary shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company
and the Preference Share Holders entered into a
supplemental agreement and agreed to extend the
Conversion Period for a further 12 months from
the expiry date of the Conversion Period such that
the Preference Share Holders shall have the right
to convert the convertible redeemable preference
shares held by it at any time from the date of
issue to 15 June 2010 and 7 June 2011 (the dates
being 10 business days before fourth anniversary
of the date of initial issue of 250,000,000 and the
100,000,000 convertible redeemable preference
shares respectively).

On 23 October 2009, the Company and the
Preference Share Holders entered into a second
supplemental agreement to the Subscription
Agreement to allow the Preference Shares Conversion
Period to be extended automatically for a period of
12 months with effect from each expiry date of the
Preference Shares Conversion Period. In addition,
the preference shares shall be transferable upon the
entering of this supplementary agreement.

For the convertible redeemable preference A shares
issued on 29 December 2006, the preference
shareholder (the “Preference A Share Holder”) has
the right, exercisable at any time from the date of
issue to 19 December 2008 (the date being the 10
business days before the second anniversary of the
date of initial issue of the convertible redeemable
preference shares) (“Preference A Shares Conversion
Period”), to convert the preference shares into fully
paid ordinary shares. The Company has the right,
exercisable during the preference A shares conversion
period, to redeem all or part of the preference shares.
The Company also has the right, exercisable following
the end of the preference A shares conversion period
and up to the second anniversary of the date of
the initial issue of the preference shares, to request
the subscriber to convert all or part of preference A
shares into fully paid ordinary shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—Z

37. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(b)

(Continued)

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company
and the Preference A Share Holder have agreed to
extend the Preference A Shares Conversion Period for
the convertible redeemable preference shares to 19
December 2009.

During the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 December
2009, the Company and the Preference A Share
Holder entered into a supplemental agreement in
which:

0} the preference shares conversion period
shall be extended automatically for a
period of twelve months with effect from
each expiry date of the preference shares
conversion period unless (i) the Preference
A Share Holder serves a written notice on
the Company notifying its intention of not
extending the preference shares conversion
period for a further twelve months not later
than seven days prior to the expiry date of
the preference shares conversion period, and
(i) the Company agrees not to extend the
preference shares Conversion period for a
further twelve months upon receiving such
notice; and

(1) the preference shares shall be transferable.

The convertible redeemable preference shares and
convertible redeemable preference A shares do not
carry the right to vote. Each share is entitled to
be paid a fixed cumulative preferential dividend in
priority to any payment to the holders of any other
class of shares at the rate of 3.5% per annum on
the amount paid up or credited as paid up. No
payment of dividends on the convertible redeemable
preference shares and convertible redeemable
preference A shares unless at the relevant dividend
payment due date, the Company has sufficient
distributable reserves to cover the payment of such
dividends.

No convertible preference shares were redeemed during the
two years ended 31 December 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, approximately
78,947,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
upon the conversion of the convertible redeemable preference
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.38 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.3055) per share. In addition,
approximately 10,526,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each were issued upon the conversion of the convertible
redeemable preference A shares of HK$0.38 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.3055) per share.
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78,947,0000% & I% /& #0100 2 & B A% - 1tt
G PRI EFIEE0.387T (BERHAR
#0.30557T) $34 A] #2314 7] fE B8 ST A Hx %317
#910,526,000 B B¥0.107T 2 il

%w>m

o
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38. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets

recognised and movements thereof during the current and
prior reporting periods:

«* 77 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——F+_A=+—HLHFE

38. EZLEBR

RABARAFEE  ERZNETERLERIE
<f§1ﬁ) BENMEEFHWOT :

Impairment Impairment
loss loss  Impairment  Change in
recognised  Changein  recognised loss fairvalueof  Change in
Accelerated inrespect fairvalueof  inrespect recognised  properties fairvalue of Undistributed
depreciation  ofother investment  of trade in respect of under  properties  profit of a Provision
allowance  receivables  properties receivables inventories development heldforsale  subsidiary  Taxlosses for LAT Total
EftRuEE  RENE BRRWER B EBME  REME HEOR 1#
MENE  2HEEE AAEZED AEFE 2HEER AAEZEE MEZED RIRER  REEE REREG a5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (#31)
At 1 January 2011 (s originalystated) =B ——F—F—H
(BBE%27) (112) 284 (16833) 726 918 (20428 (1372) (556) 11,79 = (31579
Restatement of pior periods and BEBERENE
opening balance a1 - - 1,808 - - - - - (1,808) - -
As 1 January 2011 (as restated) RZE—&-f-H
(& E5)) (112) 284 (15,025) 726 918 (20428 (71317) (556) 9,986 - (31,579
Eichange realignment EREE - - - (12) - - - - 219 = UE])}
(Charged) credited to consolidated (1) SIARNZAZE
statement of comprehensive income ek m 250 (3,525) (74) (14) - 6,290 55 (2325 - 1369
At 31 Decerber 2011 (s restated) RZE——%&
t-A=1-8
(imE5)) 9 534 (18550) 640 904 (20428) (1,082) = 7442 = (30441)
Bxchange realignment EHER = = = (15 - - - - (53) - (68)
Transfer fom properties under H%Ei%%@ﬁ&
development to properties held for sale ~ 5EYE - - - - - 20428 (20428) - - - -
(Charged) crecited to consolicated \?ﬂ@/ﬁ ANRAGAZE
statement of comprehensive income Ex 210 - (5425 - (116) - 9,65 (4.194) (493) 18771 18417
At 31 December 2012 R=B-—F
TZR=t-H 309 534 (23975) 625 788 = (11852) (4,194) 6,39 18111 (12,09)
At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses RZE——F+ZHA=+—H XAEEEXH
of approximately RMB41,063,000 (2011: RMB42,712,000) AR IEIE K4 AR #41,063,000T (=T ——
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax F: AR®42,712 OOOTE) A] R 85 AR 2R A

asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB39,256,000 (2011: RMB41,526,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining RMB1,807,000 (2011: RMB1,186,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31
December 2012, approximately RMB6,306,000 (2011:
RMB7,015,000) included in the above unused tax losses
will be expired after five years from the year of arising.
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

0 o $EIEEJ/H\EP%%& ’J/\E%w,zse,ooo
T(ZZT——% : AR¥41,526,0007T) HER
RIELERIBEE o EEEA?HK%IJ/FWEE’JTT
TERM - WELFHRARE1,807,000T (=ZF
—— & AR#1,186,0007T) BZELEHIEE
E-RZE——F+-_A=+—H HARK
6,306,000 (=& ——4F : AR #¥7,015,000
) BRELAARBAFREEESREESTE
RESEF 1 EIH o HAnig K v PR BR S #E o
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
on 20 January 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was replaced by a new
share option scheme adopted by the shareholders on 30
November 2009 (“2009 Share Option Scheme”).

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the board of directors considers, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the adoption date and as
at the approval date of refreshment from time to time,
excluding for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of
options. The subscription price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares,
(i) the average of the closing price of the shares quoted on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the grant date and (iii) the
closing price of the shares on the grant date.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the share option scheme was
40,000,000 (2011: 27,252,000), representing 4.25%
(2011: 3.20%) of the ordinary shares in issue at that date.

39. URDARERNZNARES

ARAER-TET=F—A -+ HKMH—IEE
et 5t &) ([2003F B A 5T &1)) - 20035 /&
BEASIEH -_FTTNF+-A=ZTHEER
3B ER A 2 37 e B i At &) ([ 20094 B8 Ak # 5
2 1) B e

ARAAIRLBRETEERZ2EE (BREE

SERENBERARELIHEHAEBIELE
BZASBITMEMNES  FATES E
8 BFE - AREE - 2Em - AEn - HE
BmeREBP XBBH RERBEMN
B A M BRFG R IER ) ARBARB RN - I
RE A RBAR AR ERETSIRA BB RN
NEEH 2 H/ERHNEETRA10% (T8
R B BT ERE R M TR ) - RIE(E
HEARAREZTEET  HE SRR TIE
Bz8m%E  ()ARABROMNEE  (HEER
BRRER L BB A ER S B R ERAT
ALY BT UTE - Re(iii) BB AR I h A U
Mg -

R-ZE——F+_-_A=1+—8 " RBEBERKRE
STEIRMERTECEREMSRNDEE &
40,000,0000% (== ——4 : 27,252,0000%) -
HENFEHA425% (ZF——%F :3.20%) 22
BITEBR -
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 39. URGABERNZIARS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Movements of the Company’s share options held by FHRNES EERFEBEAREZARAER
directors, employees and business associates during the EZEBIT
year are:
Number of share options
BhRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Cancelled at31 Granted Transfer at 31 Exercise
Category of at1January  duringthe  December  duringthe  duringthe Lapsedduring  December price per
participant Date of grant 201 year 2011 year year the year 2012 Exercise period share
R-3-—-% N-g--% R-B-2%
-A-H +ZR=t+-A +ZA=+-H
SEEEN RERS WAGE  REAEE  HATE  REARY  RFRER  REARY  HARE GRS ERARE
(Note 2) HKS
(Htsk2) BB
Directors 21 August 2009 14,748,000 (696,000 14,052,000 - (3500,0000 (10,552,000) - 21 August 2009 to 118
g% EENE 20 August 2012
MiZt-R :xfﬂi\ﬂ*+ Z
“E-ZEN\AZTH
18 January 2012 = = - 21,500,000 (4,000,000 - 17,500,000 18 January 2012 to 0.52
“I-F 17 January 2015
-Rt+/\A “E-Z-ATNRZE
ZF-15-AtH
Employees 21 August 2009 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 - 3500000 (6,700,000 - 21 August 2009 to 118
8 k2 20 August 2012
NBZt+-A “EENENAZT-RE
“B-CENACtA
18 January 2012 = = - 8500000 4,000,000 - 12,500,000 18 January 2012 o 0.52
“E-F 17 January 2015
-At+/\A “E-—5-ATN\RZE
“5-R5-AttA
Business associates 19 February 2010 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 19 February 201010 088
3 E-EE 18 February 2013
ZAThA :2 2¢*ﬂ+ﬂaﬁ
“E-=E-AT/\H
27,948,000 (696,000 27,252,000 30,000,000 - (17,252,000 40,000,000
Weighted average 107 118 1.07 0.52 118 118 0.61
exercise price (HK9)
IMETSIEE (B
Note 1: All the above share options are exercisable on the grant date. PiaE1 : A EFTA EEARAELT AT AR I B BRTT(E o
Note 2: Mr. Xiong Jianrui has resigned as executive director of the M2 : AR AEEER T —Z—F AT NLHEE
Company on 29 June 2012, however, he remained as an RABNITEERT - BREBIRCERKEES
employee of the Company. RAFEE °
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted on 18 January
2012 and 19 February 2010 were calculated using the
Trinomial model and Binomial model respectively. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

39. URGABERNZIARS (&)

RZEBE——F—A+N\BER-ZZE—ZTF_A+
NBFAEBELEREZ ARBIDAINUN=ZERK =

HEAGE - RANSHWT -

18 January 19 February

2012 2010

—EB—=F —ZT-TF

—A+NH —A+NB

Weighted average share price DnagE P (E HK$0.52 HK$0.85
7B%50.52 T 7EH£0.857T

Weighted average exercise price INFEFH1TEE HK$0.52 HK$0.88
B¥0.527T 7B #0.887T

Expected volatility TEHAR 18 64.05% 109%
Expected life TEERE U 3 years 2 years
3% 26

Risk-free rate B b b 2 0.475% 1.028%
Expected dividend yield TEETIRE R 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’'s share price over one year
and reference to the companies in the similar industry.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effect of
non transfer ability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately
HK$4,637,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,742,000)
(2011: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2012 in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

40. COMMITMENTS

(a) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB7,723,000 (2011: RMB7,057,000). The
investment properties generated rental yields of 4.39%
(2011: 4.35%) on an ongoing basis. The investment
properties held have committed tenants for the next one
(2011: one) year.

BHRBERRMBE —FARBIBE ZFE LK
BR2EREMAURRZ ARERMEE - &
BEATAMERANHAREENERE 2 &KIf
HE - THEERE  TENERERTALNEER -

rNEERIABE-_T——F+-_A=+—81

FEABALQAREZEBREZ ARSI N ES

#4,637,0007T (FBER A R¥3,742,0007T)
—E—F:F)o

40. TRIE
(a) EEBENEE

A EBERBLH AN

RERAYWERSWKAL B AREET,723,0007T

—ET——%F: AR¥7,057,0000T) c AIEFE
KRERBOREYMEFMEENHE s KEXA
439% (T ——4F :435%) - HEHIREWE
MNEFPARERAR—F(Z—F : —F) #&
EHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(a) Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease
receivable:

40. EiE (&)
(a) EERANRE (&)

FKEBERBLBEN (&)

REER - AERESEREBEOFENT

2012 2011

—E——fF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTFT

Within one year —F R 1,083 784

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its equipment under operating
leases arrangements. Leases are negotiated for a term
ranging from one to four (2011: one to five) years and
rentals are fixed. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals and terms of renewal were established in the
leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as
follows:

AREEERATHNA

AEBUKEROEBEEE TRE - AAD
HEPNF—FE2ENF (ZF——F: —FF
) MESEEE - 2B RHEEZHAH
T - MHEHEATPCFTRABER G

KGR AEEERMGZTAIBUHEEHEET
FR R R E A FAAFEDT

2012 2011

—E-——fF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT ARETT

Within one year —F R 54 21
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEERAFA

(BEEREME) 23 33

77 54
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments for properties under development:

40. RiE (&)
(b) F&IE

REEE » REBERYEZAENT

2012 2011
—E—CfF —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETIT

Contracted for but not provided in the BEIYBARESZE
consolidated financial statements W R TR R P B - 144,746
Authorised but not contracted for BHEBRETD - 56,627

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group and certain convertible bond as follows:

41. BEFEE

REER  AREETEESERTRT - A
ERRITEENETRARKRESET

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARBTFT

Leasehold land and buildings HE T MIEF 28,987 17,917
Investment properties REME 175,800 6,325
Properties under development EEME - 971,642
204,787 995,884

42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in Notes 34, 35 and 43 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
following event after the end of the reporting period.

On 30 January 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Lu Wenshan, an independent
third party, to disposal of its 100% equity interest in
Realtop Limited and its entire amount of unsecured
and non-interest bearing shareholder’ loan due to the
Group at a consideration of HK$230,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB185,000), to be paid within 30 days
from the completion date.

42. BEWERSEER

BrBfE s RBT5E34 « 35 R4A3FTWBEEIN » K&
BREAEHBETUATEIER -

R-_ZT—=ZF—A=+H A&EEHE—FZF
FE=7Lu WenshanFz— 1 EEWZULE
Realtop Limitedz % &F A% I H e~ AN 52 [ 3E
EREZMERREERZ2IHE  RKEAEE
#230,0007T (FEER K AR 185,0007T) @ #%
B 5ea B EARRE 30 R A A o
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 12 December 2009, the Company received a writ
of summons from Global Tide Limited (“Global Tide").
Global Tide brought civil action in the High Court of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against
the Company for compensation and damages of
approximately HK$8,834,000 (the “Claim”) in relation
to the disposal of its former wholly owned subsidiary,
Magic Gain Investments Limited. Details of the Claim
are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2009.

On 31 January 2012, Global Tide filed an amended
statement of claim in the High Court. Pursuant
to which the claim is revised and reduced to
HK$7,967,000. The Company decided to defend
against the Claim and obtained legal advice in respect
of the merits of the Claim. The directors of the
Company expect that there will not be any material
adverse financial effect on the earnings, net assets and
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group provided guarantees amounted
to approximately RMB428,962,000 (2011:
RMB266,904,000) for the repayment of the
mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the
Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released
by banks upon the delivery of the properties to the
purchasers or completion of the relevant mortgage
properties registration.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair values of the financial guarantee contracts of
the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and
at the end of the reporting period on the basis of
short maturity periods and possibility of low default
rate. Accordingly, no value has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

On 31 January 2013, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, fEMEREZE (ORYI) BIRAF] received a writ
of summons from EEREBIFEEAERIEEAT in relation to
the full payment of a legal fee of RMB18,000,000 for
the professional services rendered for the investigation of
an investment in the Trust Company.

The Company decided to defend against and
obtained legal advice in respect of the merits of
the claim. The directors of the Company expect
that there will not be any material adverse financial
effect on the earnings, net assets and liabilities of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

< 7» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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43.
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44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 3 December 2010, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with Seaton for the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Armando at a
consideration of HK$230,000,000. The Acquisition was
completed on 1 March 2011 and the consideration was
settled by way of the issuance of unsecured zero-coupon
convertible bonds of the same amount as detailed in Note
34.

45. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The balances with related parties at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) On 1 March 2011, the Group completed the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Armando from Seaton, a connected party of the
Group.

(c) The remuneration of directors and other members

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

——f+-A=t—HLEE

44, FEFBERH

RZE—ZTF+-A=H " ARAFIEKEZE]
B EE 0 LU BEArmandof) & 38 2 % 1T R
A RIEABEH230,000,0007T - WHEEED R
—E-——F=A—HEX  BEEAREZEB
BTHR B B BT RRRRES 2
AT - FIFHAMIFE34 ©

45. BEAIRZIRBERS

(@ RHEER BEALXRSZNHKRBCDEL
BYBHRERBE -

by RZE——F=A—B AEEZTKE
AEBEZBEEANLTKEWEArmandoZ
EEEBITRA -

(0 EFkEMIZEBABRFAZHNE

of key management during the year are as follows: LU
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Salaries and other benefits in kind e MAEMEY = 4,920 4,885
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Lﬁﬂfﬂ MBI R 210 44
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses L}{%ﬁa%;ﬁz AR 1)
ER SRS 3,055 -
8,185 4,929
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46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011 are as follows:

T

46. FEHE AT

RZE——F+_A=+—

—F+A=+—RHILFEE

¢ 7 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BN -—ZT——F+

“HA=tT-RZIEZEWMBLARFMAEHET

Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully
incorporation/  Class of paid capital/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation shares held registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
mi/
iR/ BRTRMRERE/
i P2 XMy FERGER AER AN RARLA IR
2012 201
Zg-ZF 5—F
Directly Indirectly  Directy  Indirectly
Ef 5 B 3
BeRzx (R ARAF The PRC Contributed capita HK$60,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Design, supply and integraton of
(Techwayson Industrial Limited) * q: 0B 7%60,000,00070 automaton and conrl st
%)29511 % and property investment
= HENZRED
BHRGRIERE
Tgch\ﬂson Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 10,000 shares 100% - 100% = Provision of management senices
Jd Y A N
ERRERARLT E5 sz of HKS1 each RULERRE
1000
SRE%T
Tgchﬂayson Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 10,000 shares 100% - 100% = Trading of autoration products
a7 80 A=
EREREAEROA &% EER 10050%%1 eadh and electronic components
ShEIT BB ES BT ES
ERANE () BRAR The PRC Contributed captal RMB100,000000 - 100% - 100%  Design, supply and integraton of
gﬁchvv;ys?E‘Te‘tchdn)olo&yt | el CIN-T AZFRI000000007% automation and control ystems
) B ERBARR
hIRG
Farlle Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 shares 51% = 51% = Trading of mobile phone
RRETRRAT B LRk 10%%1%2%1 = components
FRAMHE
f*@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ ’ZE/AE] The PRC Contributed capital RMBZS0,000,000 = 75% = 75% Deve|opmem of real estate
(Zhuhai Zhongzhu Real) Estate ) o Bk ARR Note3) i heprc
Development Co,, Ltd* (Note 2 o 250,000,0007C sy .
L (H3)  peERERME
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * HX A TEERER

Note 1: These entities established in the PRC are wholly
foreign-owned enterprises.

Note 2: The entity established in the PRC is a sino-foreign joint

venture.

Note 3: 25% of the interest was acquired through the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Armando during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

MIFET : RAPBIRZ 2 BERBERIINEBELE -

MiaE2 - RAPBIRZ 2 ERERTIEGERE -

PIFE3 © 25% st DB RBE—F ——F+-A=+—
AL E KBBArmando 2 BFE BITRA M

A=l
1= °
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46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. TEMBELE (@)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, FRABEARAEERATEZEXENE
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally EXASBNBRARIER  ARAESFTRAY
affected the results or assets of the Group to give details EAERBARER B BEMANILE

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities BEMMNBRAREAFESIEFAERKHEE
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during ERIREEEEES -
the year.

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. FATMBMRR K
OF THE COMPANY

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARETIT
Non-current asset ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 477,167 477,167

Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries RPN (a) 177,848 180,127
Other receivables H i fEUREE 3R - 177
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIR® 36 37
177,884 180,341

Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables A FE AR X 2,545 1,337
Amounts due to subsidiaries U NG (a) 139,019 115,643
Convertible bonds AJ A R% & 5 132,405 =
Consideration payable JERE 48,815 -
322,784 116,980
Net current (liabilities) assets TE) (AE) BEEE (144,900) 63,361
332,267 540,528
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE T ——F+-_A=+—HIFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. DT BERRRK (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PsE ARET T AREFTT
Capital and reserves BAR N
Ordinary share capital T iRAR AR A 88,424 81,232
Convertible redeemable A2 fE 0]
preference shares 1B 152,006 184,653
Reserves ] (b) (87,945) (81,262)
Total equity R 152,485 184,623
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE
Convertible bonds A (E S 179,782 311,260
Consideration payable FERRAE - 44,645
179,782 355,905
332,267 540,528
Notes: B&E -
@) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries (a) FEU (1) BB A RIFIR
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ZEFBEABEER  TAERRFRKEEE -

repayable on demand.
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47. ARBHBMRREK (&)

Notes: (Continued) MsE : (&)
(b) Reserves (b) B
Share Exchange
Share Contributed options  translation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BREE BABRH BRERE B S iR RitEE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT AR%®TR
(note)
(PH3E)
At 1 January 2011 R=—Z——%F—A—H 386,529 67,614 14,378 (8,146) (586,307) (125,932)
Profit for the year and FREFNRFAZE
total comprehensive WA 5
income for the year - - - 14,789 29,881 44,670
Cancellation of equity-settled BUE AR 45 E 2
share-based payments VAR D AERM 2 = = (390) = 390 =
At 31 December 2011 NZT——F
+=-A=+—H 386,529 67,614 13,988 6,643 (556,036) (81,262)
Loss for the year and FABERFAZE
total comprehensive X 2%
expense for the year - - - 3,184 (39,064) (35,880)
Recognition of VAR EE 2 LRGN B
equity-settled share-based EMS A HER
payment expenses - - 3,742 - - 3,742
Lapse of share options BE AR Sk - - (9,673) - 9,673 -
Issue of shares upon RE AR SR A] ]
conversion of convertible BERBETRG
redeemable preference
shares 25,455 - - - - 25,455
At 31 December 2012 R=B—=F
+=H=+—H 411,984 67,614 8,057 9,827 (585,427) (87,945)

Note:

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference

between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by
the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 16 January 2001.

st © ARBRMABBEARRSETEERZEER

RER_ZFT—F—HF+ B 2EEEABK
NIESHBRRCEEFEME ZE®R -
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7 Schedule of the Propert
BEERENE B ﬁflﬁ@%/ FEVNERER

At 31 December 2012 R=ZZT— 4

es Held as Investment Pro

perties/Properties for

A. PROPERTIES IN THE PRC A. URHEZYFE
Lease Group's
Location Usage Area term interest
F5E
ik ikd [k BEH JeibiEs
Land Parcel No. T205-0035 located at Hi-tech Industrial Park, Office premises and car Site area - Medium 100%
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC parking spaces approximately 8,159 sq. m.
mERRE AT LERTRNEFR R BTRNEREES BT — 418,159 A K ik
1R 571205-00350 131
Gross floor area -
approximately 17,677 sg. m.
REEEE - MNT6TTTAK
Unsold portion of first phase of Zhongzhu Uptown, Properties held for sale Gross floor area - Medium 75%
1 Shanghua Road, Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai City, approximately 7,238 sq. m.
Guangdong Province, the PRC
PEEREHEMEME LER TR HENR BEAERE - ik
E i Nk ) 47,238 7K
Unsold portion of second phase of Zhongzhu Uptown, Properties held for sale Gross floor area - Medium 75%
2 Shanghua Road, Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai City, approximately 85,682 sg. m.
Guangdong Province, the PRC
hEEREREMEME LER R PR LS FENR BEMAETE - ik
ZAMER 47185,682F %
B. PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG B. URBEBZUW=E
Approximate Lease Group's
Location Usage saleable area term interest
r5H
2 R BHTHEER HEH Pl
Suite 1501, 15th Floor, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Office premises — 242.01 sg. m. Medium 100%
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon. Own use
NERDHERBI0FHET L—H1581501F BRYENE -8R 242,017 K hE
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